
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

MARCH 3, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

March 3, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor Tom Lancaster – Woodside Bible 

Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, 
Section 1 – R-1D 1 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; Economic Development Corporation; and Planning 
Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior 
Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; Cable Advisory Committee; Charter Revision 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; and Personnel 
Board 2 

E-2 Planning Department Proposed Fee Increases 5 

E-3 Museum Education Programs and Facility Rentals Proposed Fee Increases 6 

E-4 Proposed Amendments to Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds Required 7 

E-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 20, 2008 9 

CONSENT AGENDA: 10 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 10 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 10 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 10 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 11 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 11 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt 
Paving Material ................................................................................................... 11 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Turnout 
Gear ................................................................................................................... 11 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing 
Alliance (NIPA) ................................................................................................... 11 

F-5 Donation of Obsolete Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 12 



 

 

 -  -  

F-6 Library HVAC Rooftop Replacement Units 12 

F-7 Approval of Subcontract No. 07-5734/S1 with Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. 
for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Project No. 
02.201.5 12 

F-8 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 
County 12 

F-9 Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy 13 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 13 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1 Council Member Broomfield Recommendation to Amend City Council Rules of 
Procedures Rule Number 15 – Appointments 13 

H-2 Council Member Eisenbacher Proposed Resolution for Responsible Support of 
the New Troy Library 14 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 4, 2007 ............................. 15 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 9, 2008 ..... 15 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 15, 2008 ........................................... 15 
d) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 16, 2008 ............................. 15 
e) Traffic Committee/Final – January 16, 2008....................................................... 15 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 22, 2008 ......................... 15 



 

 

 -  -  

g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 5, 2008 .......................... 15 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 6, 2008 ................................ 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Police Department – 2007 Year End Calls for Police Service Report ................ 16 

b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2008 ................................. 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Nancy Negohosian, Vice 
President HMS Products, Regarding Response Time and Quality of Officers ... 16 

b) Letter of Thanks to Sgt. Clark from Kathie Kryla ................................................ 16 

c) Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from Tina Rowley Regarding Leadership 
Oakland .............................................................................................................. 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 16 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy 
et. al. 16 

J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding International 
Transmission Company’s (ITC) Application for Certificate of Public Convenience 
and Necessity 16 

J-8  Official Statement Relating to City of Troy General Obligation Unlimited Tax 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 16 

ADJOURNMENT 17 



 

 

 -  -  

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 17 

Monday, March 17, 2008 ......................................................................................... 17 
1. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2005 

Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds ............................................................. 17 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, March 17, 2008 Regular City Council ..................................................... 17 
Monday, April 7, 2008 Regular City Council .......................................................... 17 

Monday, April 21, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 12, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 19, 2008 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, June 2, 2008 Regular City Council ......................................................... 17 
Monday, June 16, 2008 Regular City Council ....................................................... 17 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor Tom Lancaster – 

Woodside Bible Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings  

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 

Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, 

Section 1 – R-1D 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium, 
known as Brycewood Site Condominium, located on the east side of Evanswood, north of 
Square Lake Road, in Section 1, including 9 home sites, also including a 28-foot wide paved 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

street, terminating in a cul-de-sac, within a 40-foot private easement, within the R-1D zoning 
district, being 3.376 acres in size.     
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; Economic Development Corporation; and Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior 

Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; Cable Advisory Committee; Charter Revision 

Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; and Personnel 

Board  

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceeds the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) –  3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Economic Development Corporation 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 6 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/16 

 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
  

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 02/28/11 

 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
*Historical Commission Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

  
*Historical Society Recommendation Term Expires 03/01/11 

*Recommendations from Historical Commission & Historical Society expected at their 

March 11
th

, 2008 meeting. 
 

Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) –3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 

 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/11 

  
 Term Expires 04/30/11 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2 Planning Department Proposed Fee Increases 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following revisions to the 
Planning Department Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall apply 
to applications submitted after April 1, 2008: 
 

SERVICES: 

Item Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Rezoning Request $1500 $1800 

   

Conditional Rezoning Request $2300 
($1500 rezoning 
request + $800 site 
plan review) 

$2800 
($1800 rezoning 
request + $1000 
site plan review) 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

   

Site Plan Review $800 $1000 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

Site Plan Renewal (before expires) $500 No change 

   

Special Use Request  $1500 $1800 

Special Use Request Renewal (before expires) $500 No change 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

   

Zoning Text Amendment $1000 $1500 

   

Street Vacation Request $400 $500 

   

Zoning Compliance Letter $100 No change 

   

P.U.D. - Pre Application Meeting No Fee No change 

P.U.D. - Concept Development Plan Review $1500.00 $3000.00 

P.U.D. - Preliminary Development Plan Review $1500.00 No change 

P.U.D. – Final Development Plan Review  $100.00 $500.00 

P.U.D. Consultant Fees Direct reimbursement 
of ALL Planning 
Consultant 

No change 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Item Current Fee Proposed Fee 

P.U.D. Consultant Fees Direct reimbursement 
of ALL Planning 
Consultant  

No change 

P.U.D. Compliance Inspection No fee $100/hour 

   

Subdivision Approval Renewal (before expires) 
 

$500 plus $10 per lot No change 

Site Condominium - Preliminary Site Plan Review $500 plus $10 per 
unit 

$1000 plus $10 
per unit 

Site Condominium – Final Site Plan Review $100 plus $10 per 
unit 

No change 

Site Condominium Approval Renewal (before 
expires) 

$500 plus $10 per 
unit 

No change 

   

Public Hearing Re-Notification $300 per public 
hearing 

No change 

   

Site Plan Compliance - Re-Inspection No Fee $100 per hour 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Museum Education Programs and Facility Rentals Proposed Fee Increases   

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following revisions to the 
Museum Education Programs and Facility Rental Fees as recommended by City Management, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee 
revisions shall apply as of July 1, 2008: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

 

MUSEUM / Education Programs: 

*Troy School District Programs CURRENT PROPOSED 

½ Day, per student $3.00 $3.50 

Full Day, per student $5.00 $5.50 

   

 

*Out of District Programs  

½ Day, per student $4.00 $4.50 

Full Day, per student $6.00 $6.50 

  

*Day Care/Private School Programs   

½ Day, per child $4.00 $4.50 

Full Day, per child $6.00 $6.50 

 

*Student residents of Troy will be accorded the Troy School District Fee. 

 

MUSEUM / Facility Rentals: 

 

 Village Grounds & Buildings 

(Excludes Church) 

Village Grounds & 

Church 

Wedding Ceremony Fees: 

 CURRENT/PROPOSED CURRENT/PROPOSED 

Resident $250.00/$350.00 $350.00/$450.00 

Non-resident $350.00/$450.00 $450.00/$550.00 

Security Deposit $200.00/No Change $200.00/No Change 

 

Fee for Wedding Photos on the Green: 

Resident $50.00/ No Change $100.00/No Change 

Non-resident $100.00/No Change $150.00/No Change 

Security Deposit $50.00/No Change $50.00/No Change 

 

Rental Fees for Meetings and Occasional Events: 

Location Troy Org. Non-Profit Org. Non-Troy Org. 

Museum Building 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$100.00 per hr / 

No Change 

Village Green 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$100.00 per hr / 

No Change 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Proposed Amendments to Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds Required 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 60, Section 60.03, to reflect a 
new fee schedule for Chapter 93, Fire Department Fees, and one fee change in Chapter 41, 
Planning Department Fee as listed below: 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES (Chapter 93) 
 

Permit Fee: Exhibit, Craft, Trade Show $50.00  $60.00 

Permit Fee: For public display and the retail display & sale of fireworks $100.00  $125.00 

Hazardous Material Permit Fees  

Based on Quantity & Form  

0-1,000 LBS.; 0-100 CU. FT; 0-330 GAL $150.00 $175.00 

1,001-20,000 LBS; 101-6,000 CU.FT; 331-990 GAL $300.00  $350.00 

20,001+ LBS.; 6,001 + CU. FT.; 991 + GAL $600.00 $700.00 

  

Permit Fees cover initial plan review and 2 inspections  

Note: Subsequent plan reviews and inspections of the same 

 system shall apply to each inspector performing the re-

 inspection 

$50.00 $60.00 

  

Sprinkler Systems  

Riser(s) & Sprinkler Heads  

 1-10 Heads $75.00  $90.00 

 11-20 Heads $100.00  $125.00 

 21-50 Heads $125.00  $150.00 

 51-100 Heads $175.00  $210.00 

 101-200 Heads $250.00  $300.00 

 201-300 Heads $330.00  $390.00 

 301-400 Heads $430.00  $510.00 

 401-500 Heads $500.00  $600.00 

 500 -   > Heads $550.00*  $660.00 

*Plus $0.50  $.060 per head over 500  

  

Standpipes $50.00**  $60.00 

**Base Fee plus $5.00  $7.00 per hose connection  

  

Fire Pump $100.00  $125.00 

Dry or Wet Chemical Fire Suppression Systems – Per System $100.00  $125.00 

Each additional system reviewed at the same time $50.00  $60.00 

Alterations, additions, or modifications to existing system $35.00  $45.00 

  

Total Flooding Agent Extinguishing System $100.00***  
$125.00 

***Plus Appropriate Detection System Fee  

  

Permit Fees: Subsequent Plan Reviews and Inspections of the Same 
System 

$50.00  $60.00 

  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Fire Alarm and Detection Systems  

Device  

Control Panel $50.00  $60.00 

Central Station Connection $25.00  $30.00  

Fire Initiating Device (Smoke Detector, Heat Detector, etc.) $15.00  $20.00 

Each Additional Initiating or Auxiliary Control Device $5.00   $7.00 

First Auxiliary Control Device (Control Switch, Relay, etc.) $15.00  $20.00 

Each Additional Auxiliary Control Device $5.00  $7.00 

First Audio/Visual Device (Horn, Speaker, Bell Strobe, etc.) $15.00  $20.00 

Each Additional Audio/Visual Device $5.00  $7.00 

First Communication Device (Firefighter Phone, etc.) $15.00  $20.00 

Each Additional Communication Device $5.00  $7.00 

Exception: One and two family residential alarm systems must meet 

the requirements of the Troy Building Department 

 

Other System or Device $25.00 

Additional Fees  

Each Re-inspection: During Normal Working Hours $50.00  
$60.00each  

Each Re-inspection: During Non-working hours with a minimum 

assessment of three hours 

$75.00  $90.00 
per hour each 

Cost Recovery – Hazardous Materials 

Cost Recovery – Fires 

See Recovery 
Charges Fee 
Schedule in 
Section 60.04 

  

Planning Department Fees (Chapter 41)  

Subdivision Tentative Preliminary Plat 

$500 plus $10.00 
per lot  
$1,000 plus 
$10.00 per lot 

Subdivision Final Preliminary Plat 
$100 plus $10.00 
per lot 

Subdivision Final Plat 
$100 plus $10.00 
per lot 

 
Yes 
No: 
 

E-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 20, 2008 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

(a) No Changes at Candace and Carlson Park 
 

RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES at Candace and Carlson Park. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

 

(b) No Changes at Thistle and Walden 
 

RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES at Thistle and Walden. 
 

(c) Rescind Traffic Control Order #87-4-P and Issue New Traffic Control Order for 

Parking Restrictions at the Troy Public Library 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #87-4-P be RESCINDED, and Traffic Control Order 

No. ________ be ISSUED for 15-minute and 2-hour parking restrictions at the Troy Public 
Library, as shown on the attached sketch. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03-  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 18, 

2008 and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 20, 2008 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt Paving 

Material       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 
WHEREAS, On March 5, 2007, one-year contracts for Asphalt Paving Materials was awarded 
to the low bidders, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, MI, Surface Coatings Company of 
Auburn Hills, MI, and Ajax Materials Corporation of Troy, MI  (Res #2007-03-075-E4c); and 
  
WHEREAS, The contracts contain an option to renew for one additional year and all three 
awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the renewal under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the options to 
renew these contracts are hereby exercised with Barrett Paving Materials, Inc of Troy, MI, and 
Surface Coatings Company of Auburn Hills, MI, as primary suppliers and Ajax Materials 
Corporation of Troy, MI, as a secondary supplier to provide one-year requirements of Asphalt 
Paving Materials under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract expiring 
March 31, 2009. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Turnout Gear       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three-year cooperative contract to 
purchase turnout gear for the Troy Fire Department with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from the sole bidder, Apollo Fire Equipment Company of Romeo, MI, through 
the City of Rochester Hills bid process and extended to the MITN Purchasing Cooperative at 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 26, 2007, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of July1, 2010. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Alliance (NIPA)       
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES participation in the National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Program (NIPA) and for administration to approve 
purchases over $10,000.00 for operating expenditures under this program, while “Capital” 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

purchases over $10,000.00 continue to be presented for Troy City Council review and pending 
approval. 
 

F-5 Donation of Obsolete Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the donation of obsolete fire 
department Survivair Sigma self-contained breathing apparatus, air cylinders, and face pieces 
to the Oakland Fire Training Institute.  
 

F-6 Library HVAC Rooftop Replacement Units 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to replace the HVAC 
rooftop units at the Troy Public Library for an estimated $91,550.00, in accordance with 
Appendix I, Detailed Pricing, utilizing in-house personnel, approved contracts, and standard 
purchasing procedures. 
 

F-7 Approval of Subcontract No. 07-5734/S1 with Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. 

for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Project No. 

02.201.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Subcontract No. 07-5734/S1 between 
the City of Troy and Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. for Construction Engineering Services 
for the Stephenson Highway Reconstruction Project, from 14 Mile to I-75, Project No. 02.201.5 

and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the renewal of City of Troy's 
membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2008, in the amount of 
$25,200.00 and funds are available in the 2007-2008 Traffic Engineering budget, Account No. 
446.7958. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

F-9 Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Amber Creek 
East Apartments  v. City of Troy  (District Court Case No. C00-415 GZ 01 and Oakland Court 
Circuit Court Case No. 08-DA8750 AV); and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
    

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Council Member Broomfield Recommendation to Amend City Council Rules of 

Procedures Rule Number 15 – Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS City Council Rules and Procedures Rule 
Number 15 as follows: 
 

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being 
nominated for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, 
submit such name, into nomination., along with a A brief summary of background and 
personal data as to nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of 
nomination, except that such a resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

current member, or if the Council unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary.  
Resumes will be submitted on or before the time of voting. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council.  A resolution to 
nominate will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda.  All 
nominations are subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be 

filled, a roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, 

voting shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each 
Council Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the 
vacancies 

 
3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number 

of votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board 

of the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless 
membership is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter 

thanking them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the 

community on Boards and Commissions. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

H-2 Council Member Eisenbacher Proposed Resolution for Responsible Support of the 

New Troy Library 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by   
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan and the County of Oakland and City of Troy are facing 
tremendous economic challenges due to a significant downturn in the Michigan economy; 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council recognizes the economic distress facing many families, 
individuals, businesses, organizations, and charities, many of whom are affected within the City 
of Troy, by the devastating and negative impact brought about by the adjusting economy in the 
State of Michigan; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

WHEREAS, Businesses and families are making cutbacks in their budgets and cost of living 
and the Troy City Council recognizes that government on all levels should and will have to 
reduce expenditures to do its part in the present day atmosphere; 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County and City of Troy in the last 24 months have had the highest 
foreclosure rates on homes not seen in the last 50 years.  Individuals and families are leaving 
the state of Michigan at a very high rate due to the economic condition and loss of jobs and 
businesses; 
 
WHEREAS, It is important to maintain the City of Troy’s low tax rate to provide a stable 
economic environment and recognizing that low tax rates are important for attracting and 
retaining businesses and homeowners within Troy in these competitive times; and 
 
WHEREAS, A new or an expanded public library seems to be one of the public priorities at this 
time and recently the Troy Public Library has been ranked second in Michigan for public 
libraries of all sizes based on nationally gathered statistics; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager 
and City Staff to prioritize existing revenues toward new or expanded library facilities from the 
existing budgets over the next 5 to 15 years to accommodate funding for a new library; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Manager and 
City Staff to also work to seek revenue sources outside of a City of Troy tax increase such as 
public or private grants, public-private partnership, donations, and other creative revenue 
sources; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council WILL NOT ASK its Taxpayers for a new 
tax increase to fund a new Troy Public Library. 
 
Yes: 
No:   
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced   
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 4, 2007 

b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 9, 2008  

c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 15, 2008  

d) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 16, 2008  

e) Traffic Committee/Final – January 16, 2008 

f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 22, 2008  

g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 5, 2008 

h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 6, 2008  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Police Department – 2007 Year End Calls for Police Service Report   

b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2008  
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Nancy Negohosian, Vice President 
HMS Products, Regarding Response Time and Quality of Officers  

b) Letter of Thanks to Sgt. Clark from Kathie Kryla  

c) Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from Tina Rowley Regarding Leadership Oakland  
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy 

et. al. 
 

J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding International 

Transmission Company’s (ITC) Application for Certificate of Public Convenience 

and Necessity 
 

J-8  Official Statement Relating to City of Troy General Obligation Unlimited Tax 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 

have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 3, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, March 17, 2008 
1. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2005 

Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds 
 

 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, March 17, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 7, 2008 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 21, 2008 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 12, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 19, 2008 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, June 2, 2008 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, June 16, 2008 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



 
 
February 26, 2008 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 units/lots 

proposed, east side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, Section 1 – R-1D 
 
 
Background: 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of Brycewood Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan at the January 8, 2008 Regular meeting.   
 

 City Council postponed the item at the January 28, 2008 Regular meeting. 
 

 The applicant is proposing a 9-unit site condominium on a 3.376-acre parcel.  The 
development will utilize the Lot Averaging Option which provides for reduced lot widths.  The 
applicant proposes a 28-foot wide paved street, terminating in a cul-de-sac, within a 40-foot 
private easement. 
 

 For parcels 5 acres or less in area, access may be provided by way of 28 foot wide streets 
constructed to City Public Street Standards, within 40 foot private easements for Public Access, 
when in the opinion of the City Council the property configuration is such that the provision of 60 
foot public rights-of-way would be overly restrictive and would make the provision of conforming 
dwelling unit parcels impractical (Section 34.30.04). 
 

 At the request of the Planning Department the applicant provided an alternate layout with a 
stub road terminating at the southern property line.  This layout also yields 9 units. 
 

 A detention basin is required for this residential development, as per City Development 
Standards.   
 

 The City Engineer verified that there is an easement to the storm sewer to the east.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 The Planning Director discussed the project with the Applicant and the Applicant’s Engineer.  
The Applicant indicated the following: 

 
 The Applicant is providing storm water detention capacity within the proposed detention 

basin to accommodate the future redevelopment of 6322 Evanswood, the abutting parcel 
to the north that is owned by Mr. Carolan. 

 
 The Applicant has agreed to provide a capped 8-inch pipe/sleeve under the proposed 

private road to be used as a future sewer connection by Mr. Carolan. 
 
 The Applicant agreed to provide easement rights for the future use of the private road to 

Mr. Carolan for future lot splits, under the following conditions: 
 

 Any future homeowners using the private road to get access to their property shall 
contribute to ongoing maintenance of the private road. 

 
 Homes shall not be developed on the private road until construction of the Brycewood 

Site Condominium units is complete. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 The City Attorney’s Office reviewed the plat argument that was raised by Mr. Carolan.  At this 
Preliminary review stage and in light of amendments made to the Preliminary plan, City 
Council has the authority to act on this Preliminary Site Condominium application.   

 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Approval of the site condominium would be consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the 
livability and safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as submitted or with 
conditions. 

 

 City Council can deny the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan. 
 



Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared for January 8, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting.  
3. Minutes from January 8, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Minutes from January 28, 2008 City Council Regular meeting. 
5. Public comment. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Brycewood Site Condominium 
 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Brycewood Site Condo Sec 1\CC Prelim Approval Brycewood Site Condo 03 03 08.doc 

 



ROCHESTER

DEQUINDRE

LONG LAKE
JOHN

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPHENSON

COOLIDGE

CROOKS

MAIN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ADAMS



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



RONALD

SE
MI

NO
LE

MO
HI

CA
N

ROBART

SONGBIRD

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

FL
OR

A

CHIPPEWA

DINA

RANIERI

CHIPPEWA
CT

MARILYN

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK

MANORWOOD

EV
AN

SW
OO

D

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED BRYCEWOOD SITE CONDOMINIUM
E SIDE OF EVANSWOOD, N OF SQUARE LAKE
(6308 EVANSWOOD)
SEC. 1  (9 UNITS/LOTS  ZONED R-1D)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY

SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY



RONALD

SE
MI

NO
LE

MO
HI

CA
N

ROBART

SONGBIRD

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

FL
OR

A

CHIPPEWA

DINA

RANIERI

CHIPPEWA
CT

MARILYN

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK

MANORWOOD

EV
AN

SW
OO

D

C-F

R-1D

E-P

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED BRYCEWOOD SITE CONDOMINIUM
E SIDE OF EVANSWOOD, N OF SQUARE LAKE
(6308 EVANSWOOD)
SEC. 1  (9 UNITS/LOTS  ZONED R-1D)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY

SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE

TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY



 1 

DATE: January 3, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site 

Condominium, 9 units/lots proposed, east side of Evanswood Road, North 
of Square Lake Road, Section 1, Zoned R-1D 

 

 
This item was considered by the Planning Commission at the November 13, 2007 
Regular meeting.  At this meeting, the Planning Commission passed the following 
resolution: 

 
RESOLVED, That this item be postponed until the petitioner submits a plan that 
incorporates some of the comments made at tonight’s meeting.   
 

The applicant submitted revised plans for the Planning Commission’s consideration. 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Petitioner: 
The application indicates that the owner and applicant is Mike Cappuso, Brycewood LLC.  
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the east side of Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, in 
section 1. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.376 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development, including number and density of units: 
The applicant is proposing to develop a 9-unit site condominium  The proposed 
development will have a 28-foot wide paved private road located within a 40 foot 
easement off of Evanswood.  The road will terminate in a cul-de-sac. 
 
Note that for parcels that are 5 acres or less in area, access may be provided by way of 
28 foot wide streets constructed to City Public Street Standards, within 40 foot private 
easements for Public Access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property 
configuration is such that the provision of 60 foot public rights-of-way would be overly 



 2 

restrictive and would make the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels impractical 
(Section 34.30.04). 
 
At the request of the Planning Department, the applicant submitted an alternative layout 
that stubs at the southern property line.  In this layout, the road is located within a 60 
foot public right-of-way.  The paved street is 28 feet wide.  This layout also yields 9 
units.   
 
City Management prefers the alternative layout, with potential interconnectivity to the 
south.   
 
Current use of subject property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Vacant. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential and Troy School District Nature Area. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
R-1D One Family Residential  
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1D One Family Residential 
South: R-1D One Family Residential 
East: R-1D One Family Residential 
West: R-1D One Family Residential 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The parcel is designated as Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
 
Lot Area: The minimum lot area in the R-1D district is 8,500 square feet.  The smallest 
proposed lot is 9,348 square feet. 
 
Lot Width: The minimum required lot width in the R-1D district is 75 feet in width.  The 
applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option which permits a 10% reduction in lot 
sizes, to 67.5 feet.   
  
Height: The maximum height is 2 stories and 25 feet. 



 3 

Minimum Yard Setbacks:  Front:  25 feet.  25 feet provided. 
Rear:  40 feet.  40 feet provided. 
Side (at least one):  8 feet.  10 feet provided. 
Side (total two):  20 feet.  20 feet provided. 

 
Minimum Floor Area: The minimum floor area per unit is 1,000 square feet.   
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The development will be required to provide two (2) off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
 
A Preliminary Wetland Evaluation prepared by King & MacGregor Environmental Inc. 
on October 3, 2007 indicates that no wetlands were identified on the subject property. 
 
Storm Water detention: 
The applicant is proposing to provide storm water detention on the south side of the 
proposed street, abutting Evanswood Road. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
Streets: The street is proposed to be 28-feet wide and is located within a 40-foot 
wide private street easement.  A 5-foot wide sidewalk easement will be provided 
on both sides of the street.  
 
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing to construct 5-foot wide sidewalks on both 
sides of the proposed street and on the east side of Evanswood Road.  The site 
plan indicates that they intend to seek a sidewalk waiver from the Traffic 
Committee. 

 
Utilities: The development will served by public water and sewer. 

 



 4 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the preliminary site plan application, 
alternative version with 9 units and 60-foot wide right-of-way, terminating at the 
southern property line. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Brycewood Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Brycewood Site Condo Sec 1\Brycewood Site Condo  PC Report 01 08 08.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
units/lots proposed, East side of Evanswood, North of Square Lake, Section 1, Zoned 
R-1D (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site condominium revised submittal, and summarized the differences between the two 
proposed alternative plans.  Mr. Miller reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the preliminary site plan application version with a 60-foot 
wide right of way terminating at the southern property line to allow future connectivity.  
He noted it is the preference of the petitioner to go forward with the cul-de-sac version. 
 
Mr. Strat disclosed a business relationship with the civil engineer for this project, but 
indicated there is no financial interest in the project.  
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that would not constitute a true conflict of interest.  
 
Mr. Savidant announced that written communication and photographs received from 
Cathy Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, were distributed to Planning Commission 
members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated that all property owners adjacent to the subject site were notified of 
the Public Hearing.  Mr. Miller also noted that City Council has final authority to permit 
the private road. 
 
Carol Thurber of Fazal Khan & Associates, 43279 Schoenherr Road, Sterling Heights, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Ms. Thurber said there was a meeting with 
residents and specifically the homeowner to the north to discuss the potential to 
moving the road to the south end of the property.  Mr. Carolan, the homeowner to the 
north, agreed to run the road on the north side of the property because it offers him the 
opportunity to divide his parcel in the future.  Ms. Thurber indicated that is why no 
alternate plan showing the road to the south was submitted, as requested.  She noted 
the plan indicates their intent to apply for a sidewalk waiver.  Ms. Thurber asked for a 
favorable recommendation on the layout with the cul-de-sac.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Private road rights.  

 Communication from Cathy Carolan, homeowner to the north. 

 Dialogue/communication between developer and residents. 

 Stormwater control / impact. 

 Submittal plans showing alternate road layouts. 
 
Ms. Thurber addressed in detail the proposed retention pond.  She indicated that the 
site plans were provided to the developer with the understanding they would be given 
to the Carolan’s. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Mike Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Carolan, the homeowner to 
the north of the proposed site condominium project, indicated he did not receive the 
plans from the developer, but visited City Hall to view the recent submittal.  He brought 
attention to the photographs of existing standing water.  Mr. Carolan addressed the 
potential to provide sewer leads, the utilization of the retention pond in the future, a 
change in the proposed landscaping, his desire to not have a sidewalk and the type of 
fencing. 
 
Discussion followed on: 

 Potential for sewer leads and receptiveness of developer to provide them. 

 Retention pond and its accommodation of future water. 

 Landscape revisions to replace arborvitae with junipers. 

 Creativity and/or enhancement of the retention pond.  
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-     [motion withdrawn] 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Brycewood Site Condominium, including 9 units, 
including a 28-foot wide road located within a 60-foot wide public right-of-way, 
terminating into a stub at the southern property line, located on the east side of 
Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district, be 
granted. 
 
FURTHERMORE, the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management:  
 
1. Sewer leads and retention access shall be given to potential developable lots to the 

north. 
2. A sidewalk waiver be granted abutting the property to the north. 
3. Negotiate with the property owner to the north for alternative screening with the 

possibility of including a screen fence. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Hutson said he is not in favor of the motion because (1) a cul-de-sac provides for a 
water feature and (2) a stub street would prohibit creativity for future development of 
the acreage to the south. 
 
Mr. Vleck requested to revise the motion on the floor to recommend the cul-de-sac 
version.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 8, 2008 
  

 
 

Mr. Wright withdrew his second.   
 
Mr. Vleck withdrew the resolution on the floor. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-01-006 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Brycewood Site Condominium, including 9 units, 
including a 28-foot wide road within a 40-foot wide private street easement, terminating in 
a cul-de-sac, located on the east side of Evanswood, north of Square Lake Road, 
Section 1, within the R-1D zoning district, be granted.   
 
FURTHERMORE, the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management:  
 
1. Sewer leads and retention access shall be given to potential developable lots to the 

north. 
2. A sidewalk waiver be granted abutting the property to the north. 
3. The petitioner shall negotiate with the property owner to the north for alternative 

screening with the possibility of including a screen fence. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: Wright 
Absent: Littman, Troshynski 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 































1 
 

 
 

 
 
February 19, 2008 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Department Proposed Fee Increases 
 
 
Background: 

 

 The Planning Department established a fee schedule for Planning Department 
activities. 

 

 The fee schedule has not been updated since 2003. 
 

 Overall, the proposed Planning Department Fees allow the City of Troy to be 
competitive with adjacent communities. 
 

 The proposed fee schedule better covers the cost of time required to accomplish 
the related tasks and cost of personnel performing these tasks. 

 

 The Proposed 2008 Planning Department Application Fees list is attached. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 The Development Approval/Permit Process prepared by Zucker Systems 
recommended that the City consider fee increases as necessary to meet 
suggested performance standards and technology improvements. 
 

 The Planning Department is projected to bring in $27,850 more in revenues with 
the revised fees in 2008/2009. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



2 
 

Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to amend application fees.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Amending the fees would be consistent with City Council Goal II (Minimize the cost 
and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can amend or not amend the fee increases. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Planning Department Proposed 2008 Application Fees. 
2. Planning Department Revenues. 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
 
G:\Planning Fees\planning dept 2008 fee increases memo.doc 

 



G:\Planning Fees\Proposed Fee Increases 2008.docx  2/21/2008 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT  
PROPOSED 2008 APPLICATION FEES 

 
SERVICES: 

Item Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Rezoning Request $1500 $1800 

   

Conditional Rezoning Request $2300 ($1500 
rezoning request + 
$800 site plan 
review) 

$2800 ($1800 
rezoning request + 
$1000 site plan 
review) 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

   

Site Plan Review $800 $1000 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

Site Plan Renewal (before expires) $500 No change 

   

Special Use Request  $1500 $1800 

Special Use Request Renewal (before 
expires) 

$500 No change 

Final Site Plan Review $100 No change 

   

Zoning Text Amendment $1000 $1500 

   

Street Vacation Request $400 $500 

   

Zoning Compliance Letter $100 No change 

   

P.U.D. - Pre Application Meeting No Fee No change 

P.U.D. - Concept Development Plan 
Review 

$1500.00 $3000.00 

P.U.D. - Preliminary Development Plan 
Review 

$1500.00 No change 

P.U.D. – Final Development Plan 
Review  

$100.00 $500.00 

P.U.D. Consultant Fees Direct 
reimbursement of 
ALL Planning 
Consultant  

No change 

P.U.D. Compliance Inspection No fee $100/hour 

   

Subdivision - Tentative Preliminary Plat 
Review** 

$500 plus $10 per 
unit 

$1000 plus $10 per 
unit 

Subdivision - Final Preliminary Plat 
Review 

$100 plus $10 per 
lot 

No change 

Subdivision - Final Plat Review $100 plus $10 per 
lot 

No change 

Subdivision Approval Renewal (before 
expires) 

$500 plus $10 per 
lot 

No change 



G:\Planning Fees\Proposed Fee Increases 2008.docx  2/21/2008 

Item Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Site Condominium - Preliminary Site 
Plan Review 

$500 plus $10 per 
unit 

$1000 plus $10 per 
unit 

Site Condominium – Final Site Plan 
Review 

$100 plus $10 per 
unit 

No change 

Site Condominium Approval Renewal 
(before expires) 

$500 plus $10 per 
unit 

No change 

   

Public Hearing Re-Notification $300 per public 
hearing 

No change 

   

Site Plan Compliance - Re-Inspection No Fee $100 per hour 

** Fee approved by ordinance amendment. 





 
 
Date: February 11, 2008 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
 

SUBJECT: Request to Amend Museum Fee Schedule for Education Programs & Facility Rentals 
  
Background: 
 
  The museum’s operating costs are continually increasing. In order to offset increased operational 

costs, the following fee increases are proposed. These fees are very competitive with fees 
charged by similar institutions for similar services.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  It is expected that the recommended adjustment to the educational program fees will yield an 

additional $5,000 in revenue, for a projected total of $46,000/year.  
 
It is expected that the recommended adjustment to the wedding facility rental fees will yield an 
additional $2,000 in revenue, for a projected total of $10,000/year. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  This recommendation addresses the following goal: 

Goal II: Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government 
 
Options: 
 
  City management recommends that the changes to the fee structure for education programs and 

wedding facility rentals at the Troy Historical Museum be approved.  City management further 
recommends that these rates can be adjusted by City management in order to stay competitive 
in the market.  
 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



 

Proposed Museum Fee Increases 

 

MUSEUM / Education Programs 

*Troy School District Programs CURRENT PROPOSED 

½ Day, per student $3.00 $3.50 

Full Day, per student $5.00 $5.50 

   

*Out of District Programs  

½ Day, per student $4.00 $4.50 

Full Day, per student $6.00 $6.50 

  

*Day Care/Private School Programs   

½ Day, per child $4.00 4.50 

Full Day, per child $6.00 6.50 

 

*Student residents of Troy will be accorded the Troy School District Fee. 

 

MUSEUM / Facility Rentals 

 

 Village Grounds & 

Buildings 

(Excludes Church) 

Village Grounds & 

Church 

Wedding Ceremony Fees: 

 CURRENT/PROPOSED CURRENT/PROPOSED 

Resident $250.00/$350.00 $350.00/$450.00 

Non-resident $350.00/$450.00 $450.00/$550.00 

Security Deposit $200.00/No Change $200.00/No Change 

 

Fee for Wedding Photos on the Green: 

Resident $50.00/ No Change $100.00/No Change 

Non-resident $100.00/No Change $150.00/No Change 

Security Deposit $50.00/No Change $50.00/No Change 

 

Rental Fees for Meetings and Occasional Events: 

Location Troy Org. Non-Profit Org. Non-Troy Org. 

Museum Building 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$100.00 per hr / 

No Change 

Village Green 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$50.00 per hr / 

No Change 
$100.00 per hr / 

No Change 

 



campbellld
Text Box
E-04

















campbellld
Text Box
E-05

















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 18, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor Tony Boos – Faith Lutheran Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Dave Taylor in 

recognition of the first anniversary of the Senior Home Assistance Repair Program 
(SHARP).  

b) On behalf of the City of Troy Employee’s Casual for a Cause Program, Carol Anderson, 
Parks & Recreation Director presented a check in the amount of $481.67 to Steve Toth, 
Executive Director of Boys and Girls Club of Troy  

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2008-02-046 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy Exemption of 
Alternative Energy Personal Property located at 1100 W. Maple, 1414 Combermere, and 1857 
Technology Drive, Troy, MI, as certified by the City Assessor, in an amount not to exceed 

$1,025,780.00, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 
N. Washington Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C-2 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – IACNA, International 

Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago  
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
Marvin Reinhardt - Opposed 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and from the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2008-02-047 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for IACNA, for property known as 750–800 Chicago, Troy, MI 48083, Parcels # 88-20-35-
276-003 and 88-20-35-276-004, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-
238; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling 
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C-3 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to IACNA, 

International Automotive Components Group, North America, 750-800 Chicago 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2008-02-048 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on February 18, 2008, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 750–800 Chicago, 
Troy, MI 48083, Parcels # 88-20-35-276-003 and 88-20-35-276-004;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by IACNA (International Automotive 
Components Group North America), for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
personal property at 750–800 Chicago, Troy, MI 48083, for five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the Troy City Council, on February 
18, 2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for IACNA, at 
750–800 Chicago, Troy, MI 48083 may have the effect of substantially impeding the operation 
of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council it has FOUND THAT THE 

GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for IACNA, at, 750–800 
Chicago, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the 

other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for IACNA, at 750–800 Chicago, Troy, MI, 
48083, Parcels #88-20-35-276-003 and 88-20-35-276-004, for personal property for a term of 

five (5) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and IACNA, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and IACNA, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Mayoral Appointment to Planning Commission  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Pending Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 

 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

 

Mark Maxwell Term Expires 12/31/10 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution the Pending Resolution for Mayoral 

Appointments to Planning Commission 

 
Resolution #2008-02-049 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Pending Resolution D-1 Mayoral 

Appointments to Planning Commission by STRIKING in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with: 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 

 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 

 
 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 

 Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Substitute Resolution 
 
Resolution #2008-02-050 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
  

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby AMENDS the Substitute Resolution by 

INSERTING: 
 

Don Edmunds Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 

Mark Maxwell Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: All-7 
 

Vote on Resolution to Separate the Vote on the Mayoral Appointments to the Planning 

Commission Resolution as Amended  
 
Resolution #2008-02-051 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SEPARATES THE VOTE for the Mayoral 
Appointments to the Planning Commission resolution as amended. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

Vote on Resolution for Mayoral Appointment to the Planning Commission for the 

Unexpired Term of 12/31/08 as Separated 
 
Resolution #2008-02-052 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  

 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 

 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 

 

Don Edmunds Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, 
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak  
 

MOTION FAILED 
 

Vote on Resolution for Mayoral Appointment to the Planning Commission for the 

Unexpired Term of 12/31/10 as Separated 
 
Resolution #2008-02-053 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 

 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 

 
Mark Maxwell Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: All-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 

Council Appointments: None 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments - None 
 

(b) City Council Appointments - None 
 

E-2 Bid Waiver – Sole Source Purchase – Traffic Radar Trailer  

 
Resolution #2008-02-054 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Decatur Electronics is the manufacturer of the Onsite 450 Radar Trailer;  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to replace one trailer due to its inability to record and report traffic 
counts and speeds for statistical reporting; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Onsite 450 is the only trailer made with a motorized sign lift enabling any 
employee to set-up the unit without fear of injury; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the purchase of a Traffic Radar Trailer directly from the 
manufacturer, Decatur Electronics at an estimated cost of $19,995.00.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-3 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) Clerical and Non-

Sworn Police Personnel and City of Troy (2007-2010)  

 
Resolution #2008-02-055 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES a collective bargaining agreement 
between the City of Troy and Michigan Association of Police (MAP) for the period July 1, 2007 

through June 30, 2010, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the final 
agreement. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

E-4 Adjustment to Building Permit Fees  

 
Resolution #2008-02-056 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revisions to the building permit 
fees, as indicated in the attached memorandum; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That said fee revisions shall APPLY to building permit 
applications submitted after April 1, 2008. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-5 Correction to Resolution #2007-02-053  

 
Resolution #2008-02-057 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CORRECTS Resolution #2007-02-053 as approved 
at the February 26, 2007 Regular City Council meeting, C-2 Street Vacation Application (File 
Number: SV 188) – A Section of Alley Located North of Big Beaver Between Louis and Troy, 

Section 22, due to an Administrative error by STRIKING “with the retention of public and private 

utility easements” in the third WHEREAS and by STRIKING “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
That City Council RETAINS easements for public and private easements and public turnaround 
within the vacated alley.” in its entirety. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item F-12, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 4, 2008 

and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 13, 2008 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a) Senior Home Assistance Repair Program (SHARP) – First Anniversary 2008  

  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Printing of City of 

Troy Newsletter – Troy Today    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On April 16, 2007, a contract to provide printing of the Troy Today quarterly 
newsletter with two one (1)-year options to renew was awarded to Grand River Printing and 
Imaging of Belleville, MI, the vendor with the highest weighted final score, as a result of a best 
value process (Resolution #2007-04-122-E-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Grand River Printing and Imaging has agreed to exercise the first option to renew 
for the 2008-09 Troy Today under the same terms and conditions with a price increase of 
$1,100.00 per quarterly issue to recover costs due to fluctuations in paper; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the first option to 
renew for the 2008-09 printing of the Troy Today quarterly newsletter with Grand River Printing 
and Imaging to provide printing and distribution of the 2008-2009 Troy Today for an estimated 
total cost of $80,342.80, plus $1,100.00 per quarterly issue for paper cost increases, as well as 
the actual cost of bulk rate postage and additional charges as needed not to exceed 10% of the 
original contract amount or $8,034.28, with all other contract requirements the same to expire 
March 31, 2009.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Police Carports    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bid proposals for ITB-COT 07-35, to  
provide for the installation of carports at the City of Troy Police parking area opened January 22, 

2008, and hereby AUTHORIZES the project to be immediately re-bid. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – 2008 

Summer/Winter Tax Bill Printing    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On December 6, 2006, a contract to provide printing services for the 2007 
summer/winter tax bills with an option to renew for one additional tax year was awarded 
administratively to the low total bidder, Centron Data Services, Inc. of North Shores, MI; and 
 
WHEREAS, Centron Data Services, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew for one 
additional tax year under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew for the 2008 printing of the summer/winter tax bills with Centron Data Services, Inc. for an 
estimated total cost of $9,239.00, plus the actual cost of first class postage and over-runs not to 
exceed 5% with all other contract requirements the same to expire December 31, 2008.  
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Park Shelters    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials 
and equipment to install new park shelters at both the Civic Center and Boulan Park to the low 
bidder, Cedroni Associates, Inc. of Utica, MI, for an estimated total cost of $102,065.00 
including bonds, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 20, 2007, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements.  
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement MiDEAL – Toro Mower    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) Toro 
Groundsmaster 4500-D rotary riding mower from Spartan Distributors, Inc. of Auburn Hills, MI, 
through the State of Michigan Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, MiDEAL, at an estimated net 
total cost of $36,470.00, which includes the trade-in of a used mower. 
 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Ball Diamond Fencing    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4f 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials 
and equipment to install new backstops and ball diamond fencing at Flynn and Boulan Parks to 
the low total bidder, American Fence & Supply Co, Inc. of Warren, MI, for an estimated total 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

cost of $179,219.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 24, 2008, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements.  
 

F-5 Private Agreement for Starbucks Troy – Project 07.910.3 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and SSS Somerset, 
LLC, for the installation of water main, underground detention system, concrete approach and 

curb and gutter on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 

City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 

Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #28 – Sidwell #88-20-02-427-012 – 

Marguerite Kokanovich 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Marguerite Kokanovich, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-
427-012, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $52,800.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit in the amount of $1,100.00 from Marguerite Kokanovich, owner 
of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-012; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland 

County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-7 Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road 

 Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 

 Parcel #11 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-007- Wattles Square, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary  
Construction Permit in the amount of $750.00 from Wattles Square, Inc., owners of property  
having Sidwell #88-20-11-226-007; and 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay Wattles Square, Inc. an amount 
not to exceed $750.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road 

Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 Parcel 

#12 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-006 – Garrett Family Limited Partnership 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit in the amount of $750.00 from Garrett Family Limited Partnership, owners 
of property having Sidwell #88-20-11-226-006; and 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay Garrett Family Limited Partnership 
an amount not to exceed $750.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 

Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #53 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-026 – Elena 

Minetos 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Elena Minetos, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-026, 
and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square 
Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $35,600.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit in the amount of $100.00 from Elena Minetos, owner of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-026; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland 

County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-10 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 

to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #49 – Sidwell #88-20-02-228-030 

– Jack T. Crawford and Marlene L. Crawford 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-10 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Jack T. Crawford, aka John T. Crawford and Marlene L. Crawford, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-228-030, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of 
right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the 
amount of $23,700.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Transfer of Class C License for Hari Om Restaurants, Inc. 
 

(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-11a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from Hari Om 
Restaurants, Inc., to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business from Paragon of 
Michigan, located at 2360 Rochester Ct, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 

 

(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-11b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Hari Om Restaurants, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed business from 
Paragon of Michigan, located at 2360 Rochester Ct, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-12 Public Hearing Scheduled for March 17, 2008 for Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2005 Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds 
 
Resolution #2008-02-059 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on March 17, 2008 
at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public 
comments on the re-programming of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program 
year 2005 unexpended funds from the Flood Drain Improvements Project and CDBG Program 
Year 2005 unexpended funds from the Special Assessment Project to the Public Facilities and 
Improvements, Section 36 Park Improvement Project, and the addition of Public Facilities and 
Improvements, Section 36 Park Improvement Project, to the list of CDBG projects for 2005. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
    

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Council Member Kerwin commended the Troy Master Plan document and encouraged residents  
to read it. She advised that it is available on the City’s website and added that residents are also 
invited to discuss the document with members of the Planning Commission at a meeting 
scheduled for February 26 at Michigan State.   
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – September 24, 2007 
b) Youth Council/Final – November 28, 2007  
c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 2, 2008  
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Minutes/Final – January 8, 2008  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – January 14, 2008 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 22, 2008  
g) Youth Council/Draft – January 23, 2008  
h) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – February 5, 2008  
i) Planning Commission/Special/Study/Draft – February 5, 2008  
j) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 11, 2008  
k) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – February 13, 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report – February, 2008  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of January, 2008  
c) SOCRRA Quarterly Report – January, 2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Mayor Schilling from Raymond Mach, Comfort Craft 

Construction Company, Regarding the Exceptional Efforts of the Building Department  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Oakland County Drain Commissioner’s 2007 Annual Report 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center Donation 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Blight Article in 

Public Corporation Law Quarterly 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-9  Communication from Information Technology Director Gert Paraskevin Regarding 

Auction Computers and Computer Replacement 
Noted and Filed 

J-10  Communication from Library Director Cathleen Russ and Museum Manager 

Loraine Campbell Regarding Troy Museum Hours of Operation 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-11  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding People of the City 
of Troy v. Megan Nairne 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  February 18, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:40 PM  
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 8:56 PM. 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Next Steps in the Library Planning and Development Process 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:24 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 20, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling (Absent) 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Mayor Schilling Council Member Broomfield  

 
Resolution #2008-02-060 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Schilling due to 
illness and Council Member Broomfield due to being out of the county at the Regular City 
Council meeting of February 20, 2008.  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  

OUTLINE OF PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE: 

Under the Laws of the State of Michigan, Council is vested with the authority to take adverse 
action against a liquor licensee that has committed a violation of the Liquor Code or the local or 
state laws. However, prior to any adverse action, the licensee is entitled to a due process 
hearing to challenge the charged violation. For those licensees that choose to challenge the 
charged violation, the following procedure is recommended for the hearing: 
 

1. The Mayor calls the licensee whose case is to be heard. 
2. The licensee and/or his attorney should be asked to the front of the Chamber to 

acknowledge their presence for the record and can be seated. 
3. The Assistant City Attorney makes a very short opening statement regarding the 

violation(s), and presents proofs. 
4. When witnesses are called, they should be sworn by the City Clerk to tell the truth. 
5. Once the witness is sworn, the Assistant City Attorney will question the witness. 
6. The police report and other documents may be offered into evidence as part of the 

case and should be kept by the City Clerk as part of the records. 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

7. At the conclusion of the City’s case, the licensee or his attorney should be asked to 
offer an explanation for the violations if they choose, make a statement, offer 
evidence, or otherwise make their presentation. 

8. If the licensee offers evidence from witnesses who have not been previously sworn, 
the City Clerk should swear those witnesses. 

9. Once the licensee has concluded his presentation, the Assistant City Attorney should 
be given an opportunity for rebuttal, if any is desired. 

10. City Council members may ask questions at any time, but it is suggested that this 
questioning by Council members be conducted after the parties conclude their 
presentations. 

11. When the presentation of evidence is concluded, the matter returns to the City 
Council for discussion, deliberation, and resolution. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

0.0  Liquor Violations (SDD/SDM):  

 
(a) Name:  ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8242) 
 Address: 4963 John R, 48085 
 License No.: SDM (73139-2006) 
 
(b) Name:  Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8162) 
 Address: 2045 W. South Blvd., 48098 
 License No.: SDM (5815-2007) 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 

1.0  Liquor Violations (SDD/SDM):  
 

(a) Name:  The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
  Address: 2752 W. Big Beaver Rd., 48084 
  License No.: SDM (133308-2007)  

 

2.0  Liquor Violations (Class C; Class C Resort &Hotel B):  

 
(a) Name:  The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 

  Address: 500 W. Fourteen Mile Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (132719-2007)  
 

(b) Name:  Tent Restaurant Operations, Inc. (dba: Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 
  Address: 1965 W. Maple, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (139298-2007 SS)  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

(c) Name:  Troy Robin, Inc. (dba: Red Robin Restaurant) 
  Address: 5460 Corporate, 48098 
  License No.: Class C & SDM (135273 & 135274-2007) 
 

(d) Name:  California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (dba: California Pizza Kitchen) 
  Address: 2800 W. Big Beaver Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (41008-07 SS) 
 

(e) Name:  Troy Hilton Property, LLC (dba: Hilton Homewood Suites) 
  Address: 1495 Equity Drive, 48084 
  License No.: B Hotel/SDM (116291-2007/116290-2007 SS) 
 

(f) Name:  LaShish, Inc. (dba: LaShish) 
  Address: 3720 Rochester Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (100797-2007 SS) 
 

(g) Name:  Priya Enterprise, Inc. (dba: Priya Restaurant) 
  Address: 72 W. Maple, 48084 
  License No.: Class C Resort (41130-2007 SS) 
 

(h) Name:  Kan Zaman Corporation (dba: Kan Zaman) 
  Address: 586 W. Fourteen Mile Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C Resort/SDM (70378-2007/70379-2007) 

 

  

POSTPONED ITEMS: 

Resolution to Table 0.0 Liquor Violations – SDD/SDM: (a) ADI Reality, Inc. (dba: CVS 

Pharmacy No. 8242) and (b) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8162) 
 
Resolution #2008-02-061 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby TABLES Agenda Items 0.0 Liquor Violations – 
SDD/SDM: (a) ADI Reality, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8242) and (b) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: 
CVS Pharmacy No. 8162) until the end of the meeting at the request of the attorney 
representing the licensee. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Resolution to Table 1.0 Liquor Violations – SDD/SDM: (a) The May Department Stores 

Company (dba: Macy’s) and 2.0 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B) - 

(a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
 
Resolution #2008-02-062 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby TABLES Agenda 1.0 Liquor Violations – 
SDD/SDM: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) and 2.0 Liquor Violations – 
Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B) - (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
until after the last item on the agenda. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

2.0 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B 
 

(b) Tent Restaurant Operations, Inc. (dba: Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 
 
Resolution #2008-02-063 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Tent Restaurant Operations, Inc. (dba: Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 
  Address: 1965 W. Maple, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (139298-2007 SS)  

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), October 18, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 139298-2007 in the 

name of Tent Restaurant Operations, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED; and a certified 

copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

(c) Troy Robin, Inc. (dba: Red Robin) 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

 
 Name:  Troy Robin, Inc. (dba: Red Robin Restaurant) 

  Address: 5460 Corporate, 48098 
  License No.: Class C & SDM (135273 & 135274-2007) 

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test), August 23, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C & SDM License Numbers 135273 & 

135274-2007 in the name of Troy Robin, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 

STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of 

this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2008-02-064 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVE, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for agenda item (c) Troy 

Robin, Inc. (dba: Red Robin Restaurant) by STRIKING “training” and INSERTING “all 

employees being TIPS and TAMS trained since January 1, 2008 ” AFTER “proof of”. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 

 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 

 
Resolution #2008-02-065 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

 
 Name:  Troy Robin, Inc. (dba: Red Robin Restaurant) 

  Address: 5460 Corporate, 48098 
  License No.: Class C & SDM (135273 & 135274-2007) 

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test), August 23, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C & SDM License Numbers 135273 & 

135274-2007 in the name of Troy Robin, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 

STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of all employees being TIPS and TAMS trained since January 1, 2008 to the Troy Police 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

(d) California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (dba: California Pizza Kitchen) 

 
Resolution #2008-02-066 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
  Name:  California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. (dba: California Pizza Kitchen) 

  Address: 2800 W. Big Beaver Road, 48084 
  License No.: Class C (41008-07 SS) 

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 6, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had a prior violation on May 13, 1998 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 41008-07 SS in the 

name of California Pizza Kitchen, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED; and a certified copy 

of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
  
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

(e) Troy Hilton Property, LLC (dba: Hilton Homewood Suites) 

 
Resolution #2008-02-067 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Troy Hilton Property, LLC (dba: Hilton Homewood Suites) 

  Address: 1495 Equity Drive, 48084 
 License No.: B Hotel/SDM (116291-2007/116290-2007 SS) 
 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 13, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that B Hotel/SDM License Numbers 116291-

2007/116290-2007 SS in the name of Troy Hilton Property, LLC in the City of Troy, BE 

RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and all 
employees not TIPS and TAMS trained since January 1, 2008 be TIPS and TAMS trained and 
that the Licensee provide a certified copy of training for all employees to the Troy Police 

Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
. 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

(f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: LaShish) 
The Mayor Pro Tem opened the Public Hearing. There was no comment from the licensee or 
the public. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Proposed Resolution to Postpone 

 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item (f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: 
LaShish) until a representative can be present. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2008-02-068 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution to postpone by 

INSERTING “and no later than the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, March 

17, 2008” AFTER “present”. 

 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 

 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone as Amended 

 
Resolution #2008-02-069 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item (f) LaShish, Inc. (dba: 
LaShish) until a representative can be present and no later than the Regular City Council 
meeting scheduled for Monday, March 17, 2008. 

 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 

 

(g) Priya Enterprise, Inc. (dba: Priya Restaurant) 

 
Resolution #2008-02-070 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
 Name:  Priya Enterprise, Inc. (dba: Priya Restaurant) 

  Address: 72 W. Maple, 48084 
  License No.: Class C Resort (41130-2007 SS) 

 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), June 21, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations on November 1, 2001 SALE TO MINOR-TWO 
COUNTS (Compliance Test); November 23, 1999 SALE TO MINOR-TWO COUNTS 
(Compliance Test); December 17, 1997 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C Resort License Number 41130-2007 

SS in the name of Priya Enterprise, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 

STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and all employees not TIPS and 
TAMS trained since January 1, 2008 be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
a certified copy of training for all employees to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) 

days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

(h) Kan Zaman Corporation (dba: Kan Zaman) 

 
Resolution #2008-02-071 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of 
Troy respectively;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 20, 2008 for the following 
licensed establishment: 

  
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

 Name:  Kan Zaman Corporation (dba: Kan Zaman) 
  Address: 586 W. Fourteen Mile Road, 48083 

 License No.: Class C Resort/SDM (70378-2007/70379-2007) 
 

and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR (DPU) 
(Compliance Test), December 13, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2008. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 

notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C Resort/SDM License Numbers 70378-

2007/70379-2007 in the name of Kan Zaman Corporation in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED 

with the STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and all employees not 
TIPS and TAMS trained since January 1, 2008 be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the 
Licensee provide a certified copy of training for all employees to the Troy Police Department 

within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

1.0  Liquor Violations – SDD: (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 

 (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
The Mayor Pro Tem opened the Public Hearing. There was representative for the licensee and 
no comment was given by the public. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2008-02-072 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item 1.0 Liquor Violations – 
SDD (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) until a representative can be 
present and no later than the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, March 17, 
2008. 

 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

2.0 Liquor Violations – Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B: (a) The May Department 

 Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
The Mayor Pro Tem opened the Public Hearing. There was representative for the licensee and 
no comment was given by the public. 

 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2008-02-073 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin    

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item 2.0 Liquor Violations – 
Class C; Class C Resort & Hotel B (a) The May Department Stores Company (dba: Macy’s) 
until a representative can be present and no later than the Regular City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, March 17, 2008. 

 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 

  
0.0 Liquor Violations – (SDD/SDM): 
 

(a) ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8242) 
 
Resolution #2008-02-074 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8242) 
  Address: 4963 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (73139-2006) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 3, 2007;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 13, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: July 25, 2000 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 13, 2008;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 

has DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 73139-2006 in the name of CVS Pharmacy No. 8242 in the City of Troy), to 
have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS 
AND/OR TAM trained or RASS trained or receive some other training accepted by the Troy 

Police Department, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

(b) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8162) 
 
Resolution #2008-02-075 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 

  
 Name:  Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy No. 8162) 

  Address: 2045 W. South Blvd., 48098 
  License No.: SDM (5815-2007) 

  
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  

 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on August 23, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 13, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: May 10, 2001 – MLCC SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 13, 2008;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, 

has DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 5815-2007 in the name of Arbor Drugs, Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its 
management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS AND/OR TAM 
trained or RASS trained or receive some other training accepted by the Troy Police 

Department, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 
days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:32 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Martin Howrylak , Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

 February 13, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt Paving 

Material 
Background 
 
 On March 5, 2007, Troy City Council approved one year contracts for Asphalt Paving Material with Barrett 

Paving Materials and Surface Coatings Co as primary suppliers and Ajax Materials Corporation as a 
secondary supplier. 

 The contract contains an option to renew for one additional year based upon mutual consent.  All three 
vendors have agreed to renew the current contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 

 Purchasing has analyzed market trends and found the City would not benefit from soliciting new bids for 
the items specified as operating and material costs continue to rise for petroleum based products. 

 
Financial Consideration 
 
 Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Streets Division for major and local drain and road 

surface maintenance, and the Water Division for mains, service and tap-in maintenance. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-03, one year requirements of Asphalt Paving Material with an option to renew for one 

additional year was competitively bid, in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 By renewing existing contracts, the City minimizes cost increases, and benefits from efficient strategic 

planning. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends exercising the options to renew for one additional year with Barrett Paving 

Materials Inc of Troy, MI and Surface Coatings Co of Auburn Hills, MI as primary suppliers; with Ajax 
Materials Corporation of Troy, MI as secondary supplier under the same prices, terms and conditions 
expiring March 31, 2009.   

 
G:/Bid Award 08-90 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – AsphaltPavingMatl 02.08.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a











 

 February 26, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award – Low Bidders – Asphalt Paving 

Material 
Background 
 
 On February 13, 2007, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Asphalt Paving Material 

with an option to renew for one additional year. 
 A secondary suppler is awarded in the event that the primary supplier is unable to meet delivery times or 

supply material as specified. 
 31 Vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system.  Three bidders responded with one 

statement of no bid received.  
 
Financial Consideration 
 
 Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Streets Division for major and local drain and road 

surface maintenance, and the Water Division for mains, service and tap-in maintenance. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 07-03, Asphalt Patching Hot Material was competitively bid and opened with three bidders 

responding. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Hot asphalt is used in the patching and general maintenance of major and local roads and drains, and 

public infrastructure parking lots and trails. (Goal I & V)  
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends awarding contracts to the low bidders, Barrett Paving Materials Inc of Troy, 

MI as primary supplier for Items 1-5; and Surface Coatings Co of Auburn Hills for Item 6) 5 gallon pail of 
Tack Coat.  In addition, the City requests authorization to use reciprocity between Barrett Paving Materials 
and Ajax Materials Corporation in the event of a plant closing, inability to meet delivery times or supply 
material as specified. 

 
 
EF\ef S:Murphy’s Review/Agenda03.05.07 SR1 Asphalt Patching – Hot Material   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT  07-03
Opening Date -- 2/13/07 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 2/14/07 ASPHALT PATCHING HOT MATERIAL

 
VENDOR NAME: ** Surface Coatings Co. Barrett Paving Materials Ajax Materials Corporation

 Secondary

PROPOSAL - One (1) Year Requirements of Asphalt Paving Material - Hot Patch with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year

ITEM
# DESCRIPTION Price/Ton Price/Ton Price/Ton
1 200 Ton 1100T  36A Wearing No Bid 38.00$                              40.00$                              
2 300 Ton 1100T 29AA Wearing No Bid 36.00$                              39.00$                              
3 200 Ton 1100T 20AA Leveling No Bid 36.00$                              38.50$                              
4 1000 Ton Commercial Top No Bid 36.00$                              38.50$                              
5 250 Ton Commercial Base No Bid 35.00$                              37.00$                              
6 500 Gal Bulk Tack Coat No Bid 2.50$                                4.00$                               

or  5 Gal Pail 22.95$                            25.00$                              50.00$                              
Commerical Fine Wearing $38.00 per Ton

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2,295.00$                      74,100.00$                       82,150.00$                       

HOURS OF OPERATION: 7:30 to 3:30 7:00 to 4:00 7:00 to 5:00
Notice of Pick Up - M thru F: .5 Hrs Pick Up 24 Hrs
For Saturdays: 7:30 to Noon Call Call for Availability

PROXIMITYLocation-- Auburn Hills, MI Troy Plant Rochester Hills, MI
Miles-- 8 Miles 4 1/2 Miles 5.42 Miles

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: Blank Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:              Y or N Yes Yes Yes
Option to Renew for one add'l Note: Bulk tack can be 
year will be a mutual agreement picked up at Ajax Plant #2
with both parties. Bald Mountain, Auburn 

Hills

NO BIDS: ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER(S)
National Asphalt Products, Inc.

ATTEST: Susan Leirstein
Debra Printer Purchasing Director
Emily Frontera
Thomas Rosewarne
Linda Bockstanz

G:\ Asphalt Paving HOT Materials ITB-COT 07-03

EST QTY

Items picked up at suppliers' plants by City of Troy staff

Page 1 of 1



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
February 19, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  MITN Purchasing Cooperative - 

Turnout Gear 
 

Background 
 On June 26, 2007, the City of Rochester Hills obtained bids for three-year requirements of turnout 

gear with an option to renew for one additional year commencing July 1, 2007, on behalf of the 
MITN Cooperative Cities of Sterling Heights, Auburn Hills, and Mount Pleasant, and extended to 
Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network members of which the City of Troy is part.   

 The City of Rochester Hills accepted the sole bid received from Apollo Fire Equipment Company 
of Romeo, Michigan for coats, pants and suspenders.  Due to their bidding threshold of 
$25,000.00, Rochester Hills approved the recommendation administratively.  

 The City of Troy Fire department has been purchasing gear for new members and replacing gear 
of existing members over the last year. This is being done since our last gear purchase was 
phased in between 1996-1998 and had a life of expectancy of roughly ten years.  

 The department has been buying the Janesville Commando gear specified by Rochester Hills 
under the prices, terms, and condition of bid #ITB-RH-07-026 based on a regional volume of an 
estimated 500 sets of gear per year.  

 The purchase of this gear is essential to the safety of our fire fighters. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 Our annual purchases will be between 10-15 sets a year. Annual costs are estimated at 

$21,000.00. 
 Funds are budgeted annually in the Fire Operations, Fire Equipment account #338.7740.115.   

 

Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 

Policy Considerations 
Cooperative purchasing minimizes costs and increases the efficiency and effectiveness of City 
government. (Goal II) 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
February 19, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Turnout Gear 
 
 

Options 
 City management recommends utilizing the cooperative contract hosted by the City of Rochester 

Hills, to purchase three-year requirements of turnout gear with an option to renew for one 
additional year with Apollo Fire Equipment of Romeo, MI, under the pricing, terms and conditions 
established by bid ITB-RH- 07-026, a copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of 
this meeting to expire July 1, 2010. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/BidAward 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 TurnoutGear RH 02-08.doc 

 













































Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 February 22, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
     
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  National Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Alliance (NIPA)  
 
Background 
 The National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (NIPA) was established through a 

collaborative effort of public agencies across the United States with the specific purpose of 
reducing procurement costs by leveraging group volume. 

 All master agreements are publicly solicited, awarded though a Request for Proposal (RFP) 
process, and held by a principal procurement agency.  

 National IPA serves as a nationwide channel to offer the awarded agreements to public and non-
profit agencies. i.e. office products, furniture, refuse containers, emergency medical supplies 
(coming soon) etc. 

 By emphasizing a regional effort, the City enjoys the buying power of many at the local level. 
 The City of Troy Purchasing department participates with other agencies in the state, region and 

nationally to economically procure goods and services for our community. 
 Other cooperative programs the City utilizes are – the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program, MiCTA 

– Michigan Telecommunications Association for Nonprofit Organizations, MITN – Michigan 
Intergovernmental Trade Network, County contracts, the Regional Educational Media Center 
(REMC), and US Communities.   

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are budgeted in the various operating accounts citywide.  

 
Legal Considerations 
 All contracts are competitively bid as required by Chapter 7 of the City code. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 Cooperative ventures have proven to minimize cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness 

of our organization.  Goal II 
 Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic planning process. Goal VI 

 
Options 
 City management recommends Troy City Council authorize participation in the National 

Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Program (NIPA) and for administration to approve 
purchases over $10,000 for operating expenditures under this program, while “Capital” purchases 
over $10,000 continue to be presented for Troy City Council review and pending approval.  

 
\Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – NIPA 02-08. doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c







 

 
 

Date: February 15, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief    
 
SUBJECT:  Donation of Obsolete Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 
 
Background: 
 
 In 2007 the fire department received a United States Fire Administration grant to replace the 

department self contained breathing apparatus that had been in service for over 12 years.  
 The replacement program has resulted in approximately 50 obsolete SCBA, face pieces, and air 

cylinders that the fire department would to dispose of by donating to the Oakland Fire Training 
Institute (OFTI).  

 The SCBA units do not meet the current standards and would require considerable updating to be 
acceptable for firefighting use. 

 The SCBA are suitable for use in training new firefighters.   
 The cylinders have a finite service life of 15 years from date of manufacture and have less than 3 

years left per DOT regulations.  
 The fire department has changed to a higher capacity air cylinder which provides longer duration 

for firefighters working in SCBA. 
 The fire department has had a cooperative arrangement with the Oakland Fire Training Institute 

which is the fire training arm of Oakland Community College for the past 12 years.  
 Troy firefighters attend the OFTI basic fire academy night program at no cost to the City of Troy 

since approximately 50% of the classes are held at the Troy Training Center. 
 Tuition for the OFTI fire academy is $2,500 per student and Troy has between 5 and 10 student in 

each academy session. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The equipment proposed for donation has little to no value due to being obsolete and near the 

end of it allowable service life. 
 
 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



Policy Considerations: 
 
 This donation addresses City Council goal number II: Minimize the cost and increase the 

efficiency and effectiveness of city government. 
 
 
Options: 
 
 Donate the obsolete equipment to the Oakland Fire Training Institute.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

  February 20, 2008 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 

 

SUBJECT:   Library HVAC Rooftop Replacement Units  
 

Background 
 The Building Operations department has been replacing original 1986 Carrier heating and air 

conditioning rooftop units at the Troy Public Library for past three years. This process has been 
ongoing due to Capital Budget planning replacements.  

 The Building Operations department is able to buy all three remaining replacement units directly from 
Lennox, the manufacturer, for $16,400.00 in keeping with City standards of equipment.  

 The Building Operations department is requesting an additional $75,150.00, for this project to provide 
in-house labor, crane service to lift and remove the original three 1986 Carrier rooftop units from the 
Library roof, along with lifting the new units and setting it on the roof curb. Also electrical rework, new 
duct work, new ceiling diffusers, roof modifications need to take place and will be performed by Lutz 
Roofing in accordance with the 20-year roof warranty from 2002. This project will require adding the 
new rooftop units to the already in place Building Automation System that was installed by MCMI. 
MCMI is the contractor that installed the original systems that are currently used at the Community 
Center, Police/ Fire addition, and Public Library. 

 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the Library Capital Account for General Repairs #401790.7975.900. 

 The new units will be installed using in-house personnel at an estimated $30,000.00 in cost savings.  
 

Legal Considerations  
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  

 

Policy Considerations 

 Using in-house personnel will help minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. (Goal II) 
 Provides the public with up to date energy savings equipment and a healthier environment, in 

accordance with the City’s high standards.  (Goals V). 

 Moving this work forward will improve the overall air quality, remove the hazard of carbon monoxide, 
and reduce liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 

 

Options 
 City management and the Building Operations department recommend moving the project forward to 

replace the HVAC rooftop units at the Troy Library for an estimated total cost of $91,550.00, as 
detailed on Appendix I, utilizing in-house personnel.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



Appendix I 
 

 

Detailed Pricing:  

 

Three new Lennox  Rooftop Heating and Air Conditioning Units $16,400 

Crane Rental Estimated $6,000 

Electrical modifications $1,300 

Duct work and diffusers $6,000 

Roofing by Lutz $4,000 

Building Automation - MCMI $57,850 

  

TOTAL PROJECT COST: $91,550 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business –Waiver-LibraryRooftopReplacement 02.08.doc 

 

 

 
  



campbellld
Text Box
F-07

























 

 
 
February 25, 2008 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager 
  John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager 

Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
  John Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:    Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 

 
Background: 
 The TIA membership fee for participation for 2008, $25,200, is due.  This is a $100 increase over the 2007 

fee 

 The City has been a member of the TIA since 1975   
 The TIA is a private non-profit organization that is responsive to the problems and needs of local 

traffic officials 
 Former City Council Member Jeanne Stine and Chief Craft are members of the TIA Board of 

Directors  
 TIA is a source of traffic facts, including traffic crashes and traffic operations data   
 The City of Troy obtains citywide traffic crash statistics (including the intersection and road 

segment crash reports and ranking), county traffic crash trends, location-specific crash details, 
and alcohol-related statistics from TIA; as a TIA member, these reports are provided without 
charge    

 TIA also works with our adjacent communities to improve traffic in the general area that can be a 
secondary benefit to the City 

 In 2007,TIA is worked with the Troy Police Department and other I-75 communities in the 
development of a standardized protocol for the quick and safe clearing of crashes from the 
expressway 

 TIA works with the Troy Police Department on several enforcement-related projects and grants.  
They facilitated the Police Department in obtaining approximately $31,000 last year in federal 
funds for alcohol and seat belt endorsement   

 TIA also keeps the enforcement and traffic engineering community updated on new Traffic 
Improvement issues through their quarterly “Early Birds Meeting” 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 Funds are available in the 2007-2008 Traffic Engineering budget, account # 446.7958. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 N/A 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal 1) 
 Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing needs (Goal 5) 
 Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic planning process (Goal 

6) 
 
Options: 
 Approve the request as requested. 
 Deny the request. 
 







 

 

 
  
 

 
As required by state law, the City conducts inspections of all apartment 

rental units in the City of Troy.  The City of Troy has also codified this state 
mandated requirement in Chapter 82-A of the City of Troy ordinances.  These 
inspections are to occur every two to three years, and are extremely limited in 
scope to verify that the apartments meet the minimum health, safety, and welfare 
standards.  Many apartment complex owners acknowledge this statutory 
inspection requirement, and reserve in each tenant’s lease a provision allowing 
for this inspection to occur.  This lease provides the landlord with the ability to 
give the housing and zoning inspector access to the apartment for the inspection.     

 
In June 2007, City Administration sent notice of the proposed apartment 

inspections for the Amber Creek East Apartments.   In response to this 
notification, the landlord sent a letter to each tenant, since Amber’s lease did not 
contain a landlord’s right of entry for the state mandated inspections.   

 
Under state statute, if there is no right of entry for the landlord, and if the 

tenant has not otherwise given consent to the inspection, the City is empowered 
to request an Administrative Search Warrant from the Court to gain access to 
each dwelling for the mandated inspection.  The City exhausts all avenues to 
obtain these inspections, since the City has an interest in making sure that the 
minimum code requirements are satisfied for each apartment unit, and that the 
risk of fire, etc. is minimized in the City.   

 
After providing several notifications to the landlord and the tenants, the 

City was still required to seek an Administrative Search Warrant for 5 of the 24 
Amber Creek East Apartments.  After reviewing the City’s request and the state 
law, 52-4 District Court Judge Michael A. Martone issued the requested search 
warrants for the inspections.  The City notified the tenants and the landlord of the 
planned date for the inspection, and again asked for consent.  Prior to the date of 
the inspections, the attorney representing five tenants filed a Motion To Quash 
the Administrative Search Warrant.  This Motion was assigned to Judge William 
E. Bolle of the 52-4 District Court, who reviewed both the oral and the written 
legal arguments of the City and the tenants, and denied the request.  Since this 
is a unique legal maneuver that is not covered by the Michigan Court Rules, the 
tenants could not appeal Judge Bolle’s decision without filing a formal complaint 
in the case.  The attached Complaint to Quash Administrative Search Warrant 
therefore has been filed and served on the City.   

 
Absent objections from City Council, our office will continue to represent 

the City’s interests in this case and/or any appeal.      

To: Members of the Troy City Council  
From: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Date: February 27, 2008 
Subject: Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy  

campbellld
Text Box
F-09









Council Member Broomfield Recommendation for City Council Rules of Procedures 
Rule Number 15, Appointments, to provide for nominations to Boards and Committees 
to be made one meeting in advance of the appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS City Council Rules and 
Procedures Rule Number 15 as follows: 

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being 
nominated for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for 
appointment to a Board, Commission, or Committee shall, at the meeting prior 
to the appointment, submit such name, into nomination., along with a A brief 
summary of background and personal data as to nominee's qualifications 
should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a resume shall 
not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary.  Resumes will be 
submitted on or before the time of voting. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council.  A resolution 
to nominate will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda.  All 
nominations are subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to 

be filled, a roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be 

filled, voting shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council 
and each Council Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she 
wishes to fill the vacancies 

 
3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least 

number of votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or 

board of the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, 
unless membership is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a 

letter thanking them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the 

community on Boards and Commissions. 
 
Yes:   
No: 



 
Should City Council amend Rule number 15 the Regular Meeting Agenda will be 
modified as follows: 
 
E-1 NOMINATIONS for Appointment to Boards and Committees: (a) 

Mayoral Appointments:  (b) City Council Appointments:    
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black 
lines indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed board and committee vacancies will 
be moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of 
appointment. 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following 
nominated person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting for action: 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following 
nominated person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting for action: 
 
Yes: 
No: 



E-2 APPOINTMENTS to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Appointments:  (b) City Council Appointments:    

 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black 
lines indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies 
will require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit 
nominations for appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the 
number of submitted names exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and 
roll call vote will be required to confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of 
votes in the Council polling process (current process of appointing). Remaining 
vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next Regular City Council Meeting 
Agenda for consideration.  
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve 
on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
 



Resolution for Responsible Support of the New Troy Library 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan and the County of Oakland and City of Troy are 
facing tremendous economic challenges due to a significant downturn in the Michigan 
economy. 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council recognizes the economic distress facing many 
families, individuals, businesses, organizations, and charities, many of whom are 
affected within the City of Troy, by the devastating and negative impact brought about 
by the adjusting economy in the State of Michigan. 
 
WHEREAS, Businesses and families are making cutbacks in their budgets and cost of 
living and the Troy City Council recognizes that government on all levels should and will 
have to reduce expenditures to do its part in the present day atmosphere. 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County and City of Troy in the last 24 months have had the 
highest foreclosure rates on homes not seen in the last 50 years.  Individuals and 
families are leaving the state of Michigan at a very high rate due to the economic 
condition and loss of jobs and businesses. 
 
WHEREAS, It is important to maintain the City of Troy’s low tax rate to provide a stable 
economic environment and recognizing that low tax rates are important for attracting 
and retaining businesses and homeowners within Troy in these competitive times. 
 
WHEREAS, A new or an expanded public library seems to be one of the public priorities 
at this time and recently the Troy Public Library has been ranked second in Michigan for 
public libraries of all sizes based on nationally gathered statistics. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy directs 
the City Manager and City Staff to prioritize existing revenues toward a new or 
expanded library facilities from the existing budgets over the next 5 to 15 years to 
accommodate funding for a new library. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy directs the City 
Manager and City Staff to also work to seek revenue sources outside of a City of Troy 
tax increase such as public or private grants, public-private partnership, donations, and 
other creative revenue sources. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy will not ask its 
Taxpayers for a new tax increase to fund a new Troy Public Library. 

campbellld
Text Box
H-02



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL DECEMBER 4, 2007 
 
This meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday, 
December  4, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to 
order at 7:36 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Bob Miller 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman  
 
  ABSENT Linda Rivetto 
   
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
      

Resolution #HDSC-2007-12-001 
Moved by Harris Lin 
Seconded by Miller 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Rivetto be excused  

Yes: 5  Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, Miller, and Harris-Freeman 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-12-001 
Moved by Harris Lin 
Seconded by Miller 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 4, 2007 be approved  

Yes: 5  Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, Miller, and Harris-Freeman 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Above Ground Surveys 
No additional surveys completed. 
 

B. 60 W. Wattles - Request to expand boundaries 
The committee reviewed the draft of the preliminary report. 

  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



2 

Resolution #HDSC-2007-12-002 
Moved by Miller 
Seconded by Harris Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the preliminary report to amend the boundaries of the historic 
district known as the Troy Museum & Historic Village be approved as  submitted 
and forwarded to the appropriate state and local agencies for review as required 
by Chapter 13  of the City Ordinance. 

Yes: 5  Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, Miller and Harris-Freeman 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:15 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, February 5, 2008 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final January 9, 2008 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, January 9, 2008, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT:  Nancy Bowren 

Mark Calice 
Michael Geise 
Thomas J. Gordon II 

     Martin Howrylak 
John M. Lamerato 
William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 

     Phillip L. Nelson 
 

MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008-1- 01 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the December 12, 2007 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008-1- 02 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the deferred retirement request of Edward S. Siladke, DB, 12/18/07, 12 
years 11 months be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008-1- 03 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That Mark Calice be elected Chairman and Michael Geise be elected Vice-
Chairman. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final January 9, 2008 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION RESULTS 
 
Employee election results were received and filed. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS- SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
 
Rebecca Sorensen, UBS reviewed the September 30, 2007 investment performance. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2008 – 1- 04 
Moved by Bowren 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell the following investments: 
 
Sell: 5,000 shares Flag Star Bank; CBS; 4,000 shares Scana; Skywest; Tractor 

Supply; Valspar; Discover and Bright Horizons. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
The next meeting is February  13, 2008 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:09 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
 Mark Calice, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2007\1.09.08 – Minutes_Final.doc 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, January 15, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael W. Bartnik 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting as he is out of the county. 
 
Yeas:   All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR CLARK CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES - MEETING OF NOVEMBER 20, 2007 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 20, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All - 6  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4  
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and Item #4 as in accordance with the suggested 
resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Yeas:   All - 6 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE RENEWAL REQUESTS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  HARRY & SUNNIE KWON, 38921 
DEQUINDRE, for relief to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of a 6’ high masonry 
screen wall required by Section 39.10.01 for a 35’ long portion of the west property line 
where the property borders residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting renewal of a variance granted 
by this Board to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of a 6’ high masonry screen wall  
for a 35’ long portion of the west property line where the property borders residential 
zoned property.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of January  
2005 and was granted a three-year renewal.  Conditions remain the same and we have 
no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Harry & Sunnie Kwon, 38921 Dequindre, a three-year renewal of relief 
to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of a 6’ high masonry screen wall as required by 
Section 39.10.01 for a 35’ long portion of the west property line where the property 
borders residential property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FRANCO MANCINI, 6693 ROCHESTER ROAD 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new one-story office 
building adjacent to Residential Zoned property without a screen wall as required by 
Section 39.10.01.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new one-story building adjacent to Residential Zoned property without a screen wall 
as required by Section 39.10.01.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
meeting of January 16, 2007 and was granted approval for one year.  This building has 
not been constructed at this time therefore an approval for one additional year is 
suggested. 
 
MOVED, to grant Franco Mancini, 6693 Rochester Road a one-year renewal of relief to 
construct a new one-story office building adjacent to Residential Zoned property without 
a screen wall as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 

• One-year time frame will give the Board the opportunity to determine if a screen 
wall would be more effective. 

• One-year time frame will give the Board the opportunity to see the final 
construction of the building. 

• One-year time frame will give residents in the area the chance to determine if the 
natural vegetation will provide enough screening. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #5 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  JOHN SCISLOWICZ, 2002 ATLAS, for 
approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial 
vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking approval under Section 43.74.01 of 
the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The GMC “Top kick” truck described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance.  A  
similar request was approved by City Council under the previous criteria for two years in 
2005.  That approval has now expired and the petitioner has submitted a new 
application to this board for approval. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz was present and stated that he had tried to park his vehicle in other 
places however, he is on call 24 hours a day and he needs to have the truck at his 
disposal.  Mr. Scislowicz stated that he has not had any problems or complaints from 
his neighbors.  Mr. Scislowcz further stated that he has had a similar vehicle parked in 
this location for the last twenty-one years and has not had any problems. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what this vehicle was used for. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz stated that he has a mobile truck repair business. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked where the office for this business was located. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz explained that the office is in his home.  He gets calls and goes out on 
the road or to another place of business to work on the vehicles that require repair.  At 
one time he also had two trailers that he used to haul his tools, but downsized this 
business in the 90’s and now only has the one vehicle.   Mr. Scislowicz indicated that 
this vehicle is actually smaller than the last vehicle he had. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how close this vehicle was parked to the lot line. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz said that it is parked right next to the fence and his neighbor indicated 
that he did not have a problem with that. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the vehicle was taller than the fence and Mr. Scislowicz said that it 
was. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the dimensions of the vehicle were.  The height of the shrub 
appears to be below the eve of the garage and the vehicle appears to be very wide. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz stated that he was not sure but he thought it was approximately 7’. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if it would fit into the garage. 
 
Mr. Scisclowicz stated that this vehicle will not fit into his garage. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what type of vehicle this was. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz said it was a 4500 series GMC and was perfect for his purposes. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that one of the restrictions put on a home based business was that 
there could not be any outward appearance of a business operating out of a house.  In 
his opinion, this truck indicates that a business is being run out of this house. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked for a clarification of this point. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the definition of a home occupation indicates that there cannot be 
any outside storage or display of the materials that are part of the business, there can’t 
be any signs on the property advertising a business and there cannot be any parking 
outside, other than what is typically found in the immediate adjacent neighborhoods. 
Nothing can be visible to the neighbors indicating that a business is being run out of the 
home.  This does not preclude the parking of a commercial vehicle of the size permitted 
by the Ordinance.  The only reason he is before this Board is because of the size and 
type of this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Maxwell confirmed that this vehicle did not necessarily indicate that a business was 
being run out of this home. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that as long as there was not an outdoor display, a commercial vehicle 
would be allowed as long as it complied with the exceptions regarding commercial 
vehicles in the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Scislowicz had entertained the thought of raising the height of 
the garage. 
 
Mr. Scislowicz said that he had but said that he believes he is already at the limit for 
accessory buildings allowed on his property and did not feel he would be able to raise 
the height of the garage due to power lines directly above the garage. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this may be an option that Mr. Scislowicz may want to explore at a 
further date. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Gary Toivonen, 2015 Atlas was present and stated that he has been a resident of 
Troy for over forty years and Mr. Scislowicz has lived in this home for more than twenty 
years.  Mr. Toivonen stated that Mr. and Mrs. Scislowicz are model neighbors and 
citizens of Troy.  This house is the sign of a good neighbor as the property is kept up 
and this commercial vehicle is not bothersome at all.  Mr. Toivonen stated that the only 
time he hears or sees this truck, is when Mr. Scislowicz is either going to or coming  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
from work.  Mr. Toivonen strongly supports this request, as this is Mr. Scislowicz’s only 
source of income, and a hardship would be created for Mr. Scislowicz if the vehicle 
needed to be stored at another location.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Toivonen if he had ever seen this vehicle parked in front of the 
house or any other location. 
 
Mr. Toivonen said that the vehicle is always parked in the driveway and unless you are 
looking for it as you drive by, it is very difficult to see. 
 
Mr. Doug Snooks, 1990 Atlas, was present and stated that he lives on the other side of 
this home.  Mr. Snooks stated that he supports this request and said that you won’t see 
the truck unless you stop and look down the driveway. 
 
Mr. Curtis Childs, 1931 Atlas, was present and stated that he supports this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell pointed out that this was a temporary parking approval and if approved the 
maximum amount of time for approval was two years. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that the vehicle is parked in a good location, but this area is zoned 
residential and is concerned because it is parked right along the property line. Further, 
Mr. Bartnik said that if this Board keeps granting renewals, eventually they become a 
permanent variance and are contrary to the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like to see some exploration in enlarging the garage 
in order to accommodate this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he has a Dodge Ram 1500 and this truck is not much larger than 
his.  Recreational vehicles are allowed to park outside on residential property and in his 
opinion it is ludicrous that this truck would not be allowed to park here.  As far as 
parking at the lot line, the driveway extends that far.  Mr. Kovacs said that his concerns 
were that he was moving it forward and the neighbors have stated this is not the case.  
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion this vehicle was not much larger than a pick up truck. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the Board has to look at all the requirements and determine 
what is allowable.  It is important that the petitioner provide evidence to this Board to 
support this request.  The Board does not know if it is possible to enlarge the garage, 
but the Board would like to see some evidence from the petitioner that he cannot 
accomplish this.  Mr. Maxwell said this in his opinion he can see approving this for no  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
more than one year, and have the petitioner come back to the Board and provide 
support for his request and show how he cannot comply with the criteria provided on the 
application. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that in his opinion it was up to the petitioner to provide the necessary 
information the first time they come before the Board for an approval as opposed to 
coming in for a renewal. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that was correct, however, people being people did not always 
understand what was required. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that this petitioner is on call 24 hours a day and does believe that 
Item A does pertain to this request.  Mr. Courtney also said that he would like to see the 
garage enlarged. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he would like more information provided. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of John Scislowicz, 2002 Atlas, under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property for a period of one year. 
 

• Allow the petitioner to bring evidence that a larger garage is not feasible. 
• Allow the petitioner to show that he has explored other possibilities for storing 

this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how many votes were required to approve this request. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a variance requires four (4) affirmative votes.  An approval 
requires a majority of affirmative votes.  If there were only five members present, only 
three (3) votes would be required to approve this request. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the requirement was regarding parking recreational vehicles 
next to the lot line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that recreational vehicles are required to park behind the front line 
of the house and parked no closer than 3’ to the side or rear property line. 
 
Vote on the motion to approve for one year. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney, Gies 
Nays:  2 – Wright, Bartnik 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR ONE YEAR CARRIED 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that if the garage is expanded, the petitioner would not be 
required to come back before this Board. 
 
ITEM #6 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  KEVIN FERGUSON, 2127 ATLAS, for 
approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial 
vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking approval under Section 43.74.01 of 
the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The Chevrolet cube van described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance.  A 
similar request was approved by City Council under the previous criteria for one year in 
July of 2006.  That approval has now expired and the petitioner has submitted a new 
application to this board for approval. 
 
Mr. Kevin Ferguson was present and stated that he has not received any complaints 
from his neighbors, except for one, and has had this vehicle for four (4) years.  He is a 
window installer and he can guarantee that this vehicle would be broken into within 
three weeks of parking it outside at another location. Before he had moved here, he had 
parked his vehicle at a bar parking lot and it was broken into.  Mr. Ferguson travels all 
over Michigan and Ohio. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if Mr. Ferguson had attempted to find another location for this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that the way the economy is now; he cannot afford to park the 
vehicle in another location.  He needs the vehicle at his home and it is not feasible to 
park it elsewhere.  Too much time would be involved getting to the jobs he is needed at 
if the truck was parked some where else.  Mr. Ferguson also said that the vehicle would 
be broken into. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he understands Mr. Ferguson is renting this home.  Mr. Maxwell 
also said that the petitioner is required to present some information that he has 
contacted other locations to store this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that one of the reasons he chose this home to live in was that he 
could park this vehicle at the back of the property and he is the longest tenant that has 
leased this property.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if Mr. Ferguson had taken the photographs included in his 
presentation. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Ferguson stated that Mr. Phillips, Housing and Zoning Inspector, had taken this 
photo in 2007 and there is approximately 2’ of clearance against the fence. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that when he went by this location it appeared that the truck was right 
up to the fence post.  
 
Mr. Ferguson said that it was at least 2’ from the south property line.  There is room to 
walk by the truck. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that after reading the minutes from the Council meeting, they indicate 
that City Council required a wooden fence across the driveway in front of this truck. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that he has a wooden fence post with one gate.  He could not put up 
a second gate because the mirrors extend too far from the side of the truck.  Mr. 
Ferguson also indicated that the appearance of the truck is worse with the gate across 
the front of it.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what the dimension of the truck was. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that it was 11’4” high.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this was a home business. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that he is a sub contractor for Sears and only does work for Sears.  It 
is impossible to find somewhere to park a cube van.  It is a big truck and won’t fit at 
inside storage facilities. He has spoken to bar owners to park this vehicle on their 
property, but he can guarantee that the truck would be broken into. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if he had ever found anywhere to park this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that he needs his truck at his disposal, and it just would not work for 
him to store this vehicle forty-five minutes from his home.  Mr. Ferguson said that he 
believes “blue-collar” workers are being run out of Troy. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that this was absolutely not true.  A majority of people got together 
and decided that they do not want to live with commercial vehicles.  This issue is not 
just about any petitioner with a commercial vehicle; it pertains to the area where people 
live.  Sometimes these things impact other people in the neighborhood.  It is up to this 
Board to make a decision that is fair to all citizens and not just one.  Many years ago all 
kinds of businesses went through neighborhoods, but these commercial vehicles were 
not parked in residential areas.  The Board has to look at everybody and determine 
what is fair for everyone.  Mr. Maxwell said that the petitioner did not present any 
evidence that he was unable to find a storage facility that would accept this vehicle. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell also stated that this is a very large vehicle and it fills up the entire driveway.  
It is very large compared to the size of the home and the lot.  Mr. Maxwell said that in 
his opinion a vehicle that is as large as this one, should be parked on a lot that is larger 
than the present property. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he did not feel this vehicle needed to be on call twenty-four 
hours a day and did not see a hardship with it parked off-site.  Mr. Courtney then asked 
how many employees Mr. Ferguson had. 
 
Mr. Ferguson said that it is just himself and his partner.  His partner usually goes 
directly to the job.  Mr. Ferguson also said that he may have a helper if there is a large 
job, and he either will meet him on the job or at his home. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Steve Johnson, 2105 Castleton was present and stated that he lives behind the 
petitioner.  Mr. Johnson said that he can see this vehicle from his back door. Mr. 
Ferguson is just making a living.  Mr. Johnson approves this request.  Mr. Johnson said 
that it is easy for someone to say “buy a bigger lot” but not everyone can afford to do 
that.  Business is very bad and if he had a choice he would move out of Troy.  Mr. 
Johnson stated that he plans to buy a cargo van next month and is curious as to 
whether or not he will be able to park it at his home.  Mr. Johnson said that he has a 
truck with a ladder on the top and cannot fit into his garage.  He will appeal any decision 
that would not allow him to park his vehicle on his property, 24 hours a day if he has to.  
Mr. Ferguson is a good neighbor and Mr. Johnson said that there are too many 
restrictions on the parking of commercial vehicles.  We are in a one-state recession and 
some people cannot afford a huge home on a large lot. 
 
Mr. Maxwell disagreed with Mr. Johnson’s statement and stated that it does not have 
anything to do with this request.  The Board cannot make a fair decision without proper 
evidence from the petitioner indicating that there are no other alternatives available. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that this goes on every year and asked if any type of solution had 
been found yet. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that it had not and it has put this Board in a very tough position.  Mr. 
Maxwell said that they are trying to come up with a fair solution for everyone with the 
rules that they have to go by.  Large commercial vehicles do have an impact on 
residential areas.   
 
A discussion began regarding recreational vehicles and commercial vehicles.  Mr. 
Maxwell stated that if the petitioners are not happy with the rules created, they need to  
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
go before City Council and tell them.  If this Board did not like something, they would 
have to do the same thing.  Solutions are needed for commercial vehicles and the 
criteria provided are very confusing. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that people are having a hard time as it is, and these rules are 
making it harder for them.  In his opinion certain people are targeted and he does not 
feel it is fair. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he can assure Mr. Johnson that each petitioner gets a fair hearing 
and a decision is based on the information provided.  Mr. Maxwell also said that the 
good of the community as a whole has to be taken into consideration. 
 
Mr. Johnson also stated that it costs approximately $300 per month to store a vehicle 
and the way business is, it is very difficult to come up that amount of money. 
 
Mr. William Buban, 2126 Atlas, was present and stated that he lives directly across the 
street.  This was supposed to be a temporary variance and the petitioner did not meet 
the requirements of Council in putting up a fence.  Once again, this petitioner is seeking 
approval.  This truck is too large for this area.  There are five or six cars in the 
household and they cannot fit into the drive and therefore are parked in the street.  Mr. 
Buban is against this request. 
 
Mr. Curtis Childs, 1931 Atlas stated that he lives down the street and does not see a 
problem with this truck.  Mr. Childs said that he never sees it parked on the street and 
even when he and his children go for a walk, this truck is difficult to see. 
 
Mr. Buban, 2126 Atlas came back to the podium and stated that his neighbor had a 
difficult time selling his home and he believes it was in part due to this truck. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are four (4) written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Kevin Ferguson, 2127 Atlas, for approval under Section 
43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property. 
 

• This approval would be contrary to public interest. 
• Petitioner has not met the criteria of Item C. 
• Petitioner has not submitted any evidence that he has met the criteria in either 

Item A or B. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 

• Approval would permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a residential area. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the criteria has been changed very recently and he believes that 
the Board is expecting too much of the petitioners.  The petitioners have had these 
vehicles parked at their homes for years and now he thinks that the Board needs to give 
the petitioners some leeway on these commercial vehicle requests.  Mr. Kovacs also 
stated that he feels the petitioner did comply with the criteria listed in Item C. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this petitioner would not be able to build a larger garage as this is 
not his home.  Mr. Maxwell also said that he does believe this vehicle is too large for 
this area, but is concerned because he believes the petitioner needs to have a time 
frame to look for other parking. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that the petitioner has had more than a year to look for another 
location. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he believes the petitioner needs to have some time to look into 
other arrangements. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he is highly opposed to this request, but would be willing to give 
him some time to look into alternative locations for this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he does believe this vehicle has a negative effect to surrounding 
property because it is extremely large. 
 
Vote on motion to deny 
 
Yeas:   2 – Wright, Bartnik 
Nays:   4 – Maxwell, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant approval to Kevin Ferguson, 2127 Atlas, under Section 43.74.01 of 
the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property 
for a period of six (6) months. 
 

• To permit Mr. Ferguson the opportunity to explore all criteria required in the 
application. 

• Outdoor storage of this vehicle is the only solution for this request. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he wished to amend the motion for the petitioner to comply with the 
requirements made by City Council to put a fence across the driveway. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that Mr. Ferguson said he could only use one side, because the other 
gate would bang into the mirrors on the vehicle.  Mr. Courtney did not believe it would 
apply since this approval was only for a period of six (6) months. 
 
Motion to amend fails due to lack of support. 
 
Vote on motion to approve for six months. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Nays:  2 – Wright, Bartnik 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR SIX (6) MONTHS APPROVED 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained to the petitioner that he does have the opportunity to present a 
case in the next six (6) months that would justify this Board granting approval for a 
longer period of time.  Mr. Maxwell also stated that the criteria presented is very poorly 
written, and makes it very difficult for the Board to make a decision and encouraged Mr. 
Ferguson to appear before City Council and make his concerns known.  Mr. Maxwell 
further stated that in his opinion this vehicle is too large for this location.  Commercial 
vehicles do have an impact on residential areas and do have an impact on the quality of 
life in a residential area.  Mr. Maxwell suggested that perhaps the solution would be to 
zone a section of the City to allow the parking of these trucks. 
 
Mr. Ferguson stated that the main reason he leased this home was because he thought 
it would be ideal as a location for this vehicle.  Mr. Ferguson also said that he would 
never park this truck in front of this home or at the front of his driveway. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TONY V’S SUNROOMS, 2024 LAKESIDE, for 
relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ 
rear yard setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe 
Drive.  Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum 
front yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is seeking relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
rear patio enclosure.   This property is located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Lakeside and Southpointe.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent 
houses it is a double front corner lot and has front yard setbacks along both streets.  
Because of the orientation of this house the south property line is considered to be the 
rear property line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 28.18’ rear yard 
setback and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front 
yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Terry Cocetto, of Tony V’s Sunrooms was present and stated that the hardship with 
this property is the way the house is situated on the lot.  This is a corner lot and the 
house was constructed to the maximum of where it could be placed on the lot.  The 
sunroom cannot be moved farther west as there is a pedestrian door there, and the 
sunroom would be in the middle of the door, which is the only access to the sunroom. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the deck was going to remain. 
 
Mr. Cocetto stated that the sunroom was going to be constructed on top of the deck. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not have a problem with the setback on the side; however, 
was concerned about the large request for the reduction of the rear setback.  The whole 
house was constructed to the 40’ rear property line and Mr. Kovacs feels this variance 
request is just too large. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the house was between 12’ or 15’ from the west property line. 
 
Mr. Cocetto said that in most communities the rear yard setback is considered to be the 
sight line.  The house to the west has a number of trees at the rear and this sunroom 
would not be visible. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Cocetto asked if notices had been sent to the neighbors. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they had. 
 
Mr. Courtney indicated that there was an approval letter from the Homeowners 
Association. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that at the time this sub was platted they did not use the lot averaging 
concept but did allow for an adjustment of lot sizes.  The 10% reduction in size does not 
apply to corner lots.  This lot is an unusual shape to maximize the measured width. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not think the lot configuration was a hardship. 
 
Mr. Wright said that in his opinion, this petitioner was being penalized because there 
were two (2) front yards; however, it could also be looked at as two (2) rear yards. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would have a problem with this request as he feels this 28’ rear 
yard setback is too large.   
 
Motion by Kovacs. 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request is too large. 
• 28’ rear yard setback is excessive. 

 
Yeas:  Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Nays:  Bartnik, Courtney, Wright 
 
MOTION TO DENY FAILS 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Tony V’s Sunrooms, 2024 Lakeside, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 28.18’ rear yard setback 
and a 24’ front setback to the east property line along Southpointe Drive.  Section 
30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback and a 25’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1D Zoning Districts until the meeting of February 19, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full board. 
 
Yeas:  All - 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL FEBRUARY 19, 2008 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell began a discussion regarding the commercial vehicle requests.  Mr. 
Maxwell said that both City Council and the Planning Commission need to look at the 
criteria for these vehicles as he believes the rules are very vague and right now the 
criteria is meaningless. 
 
Mr. Wright indicated that the Planning Commission is working on changing the 
Ordinance that will also include recreational vehicles. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

15 
 

Mr. Courtney stated that they are not allowed to be parked in his subdivision.  
Recreational vehicles are only allowed to come into the area to load and unload and are 
stored at another location. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he believes it is difficult for people that have had these vehicles at 
home for a long time to meet the criteria as presented. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he thought there were locations zoned light industrial in the City, 
where these vehicles could be stored. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he had understood there was a list of storage facilities available 
that could be given to these petitioners. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is information regarding storage for commercial vehicles.  
There are also a number of storage yards that don’t outwardly advertise that they have 
storage available, and this information would not be available.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
information regarding storage yards could certainly be made available.  One additional 
storage yard was approved at the last meeting of the Planning Commission and Mr. 
Stimac believes another one is coming before the Planning Commission for approval. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to explain the criteria established for these commercial vehicles.  
Specifically they have to comply with Item A or Item B and Item C.  For example, in 
looking at the cases tonight: the vehicle parked in Mr. Ferguson’s driveway does not 
allow for any access to the garage or the driveway.  All other activity has to take place in 
front of the residence or in the front of the drive.  When it is parked at the back of the 
driveway it prohibits all other use of the garage.  You need to look at what impact a 
commercial vehicle has on the property itself. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what is required to store vehicles in the M-1 (Light Industrial Zoning 
District). 
 
Mr. Stimac said that outdoor storage of commercial vehicles in the M-1 Zoning District 
requires Special Use Approval from the Planning Commission and there are a number 
of facilities that have been approved for special use approval in the City that do allow for 
outdoor storage. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that as business owners, the cost of storing a commercial vehicle is 
part of the cost of running the business.  There are a number of commercial buildings 
available and perhaps these business owners could look into these as another solution. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the vehicles needed to be protected and it may not be feasible to 
park them outside.  The solution may need for the petitioner to rent space on a lot that 
has 24-hour protection. 
 
Mrs. Gies said that it would make sense for them to park them in gas stations, if the 
locations are approved, because someone is always there. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                        JANUARY 15, 2008 

16 
 

Mr. Courtney said that the first petitioner needed his vehicle day or night, but the larger 
vehicle would need to be stored on a larger lot. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he can understand how these petitioners feel discriminated 
against, as much larger vehicles, such as recreational vehicles, can be parked at 
property owners’ homes.  Mr. Kovacs said that he feels recreational vehicles should be 
treated the same as commercial vehicles and criteria should be established monitoring 
these vehicles also. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he thinks the commercial vehicles can be detrimental to the area 
around them. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he does not feel these recreational vehicles should be allowed to 
park outside either. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Planning Commission is having a difficult time drafting 
language for the commercial vehicles and he knows they are still working on them. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he would like the Board to look at the by-laws as he feels that 
changes are required.  Mr. Bartnik said he was not sure if this was a job for the Board 
but would like to see the discrepancies he found corrected. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is another Planning and Zoning consolidation law that is 
coming to the Senate and there may be more changes made to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals by-laws and Zoning regulations.  Mr. Stimac suggested that Mr. Bartnik e-mail 
or sends his concerns to him and he would be happy to look at them and bring any 
changes to the Board. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:02 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
     Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
  



  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES       DRAFT          January 16, 2008 

 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
January 16, 2008 in Conference Room 195 of Columbia Center, 101 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:50 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Al Aceves 
   David Hay 

Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 
Daniel MacLeish 
Ernest Reschke 
G. Thomas York 
 
 

ABSENT:  Michael Culpepper 
   Stuart Frankel 

Louise Schilling  
Douglas Schroeder 
Harvey Weiss 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Phil Nelson 
   John M. Lamerato 

Brian Murphy   
   Lori Bluhm 
   Mark Miller 
   Dick Carlisle 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-08-01 
Moved by:    MacLeish 
Seconded by:  Aceves 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the December 19, 2007 regular meeting be 
approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (8) 
Absent: Culpepper, Frankel, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Study Session 
 
Dick Carlisle of Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. facilitated the Investment & 
Strategy Workshop.   
 
The workshop agenda contained the following topics: 
 

- Role of DDA 
- Recap of the Big Beaver Corridor Study 
- Investment strategy exercise  

 
A summary and results of the investment strategy exercise will be compiled by 
Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. and presented at the next DDA meeting.   
 
 
B.   November 30, 2007 Monthly Financial Report was received and filed 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Council member Wade Fleming made a few brief favorable comments on the Study 
Session. 
 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-08-02 
Moved by:    York 
Seconded by:  Reschke 
 
RESOLVED, That Culpepper, Frankel, Schilling, Schroeder and Weiss be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (8) 
Absent:  Culpepper, Frankel, Schilling, Schroeder, Weiss 
 
 
 



The meeting was adjourned at 12:49 p.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  February 20, 2008 @ 7:30 a.m. in the Lower Level Conference 
Room, City Hall. 
 

 
         
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
JL/ph 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01e









campbellld
Text Box
J-01f











campbellld
Text Box
J-01g









BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, February 6, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 2, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GREAT LAKES ELECTRIC SIGN COMPANY, 
1790 MAPLELAWN, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) additional wall signs on 
an existing building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect three 
(3) additional wall signs.  The petitioners are planning to keep an existing 24 square foot 
wall sign.  The plans submitted indicate the three new wall signs will measure 90.25 
square feet, 32.5 square feet and 31.875 square feet in area.  Section 85.02.05 (C) (5) 
allows a maximum of three wall signs.  One wall sign can measure up to 100 square 
feet in area, and the other two can measure up to 20 square feet each in area. 
 
Additionally, Section 85.01.05 (C) does not allow a wall sign to project more than 12” 
out from the building wall or above the roof or parapet line.  One of the signs (the 
largest) will project 4’-6” out from the building and extend 3’-1” above the parapet line. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of January 2, 2008 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner to present the Board with more detailed 
information regarding this request; and, also to allow representatives from both the 
dealership and the Sign Company that is constructing the sign, to appear before the 
Board. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Tom Novak of Great Lakes Electric Sign Company, David Fischer, Jr. and Mr. 
Robert Salenik of Saturn Corporation and Mr.Richard Burke of L & A Architects were 
present. 
 
Mr. Fischer stated that these signs are a new, updated look for GM and they want to 
keep their advertising on the cutting edge.  The signs will also increase customer 
convenience.  Customers were having a difficult time finding the entranceway to this 
dealership and the new sign will be a focal point for this entranceway. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had looked into any other sign packages that would be in 
compliance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  All of the buildings in this area are 
attractive and easily recognizable by the existing signage.  Mr. Kessler did not see a 
hardship that would justify this variance request. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that they were expecting someone from Cummins Sign Company to 
be present in order to address the concerns of the Board.  Mr. Novak stated that he did 
not believe there was a hardship.  Mr. Novak stated that he had been a tool designer 
and did all of his work in Troy.  The Troy Motor Mall has become a showcase for the 
automotive industry.  Mr. Novak said that he believed other signs in the area required 
variances and the signs that they are proposing would add to the beauty of the area. 
 
Mr. Fischer asked if changing the roof line of the building was considered a hardship. 
 
Mr. Kessler gave examples of a hardship the Board would consider, such as the 
location of the building, type of landscaping or something else that would run with the 
land.  Each building is different and he does not believe there is anything unique about 
this building that would justify a variance. 
 
Mr. Richard Burke of L & A Architects stated that the “sky box” sign is an architectural 
feature to the building.  Saturn Corporation has made their product more upscale.  
Customers coming to this location could not find the front door and this “sky box” sign 
will enable them easier access and will be in conformance with other dealers across the 
country.  Saturn has tried to keep costs down and that is the reason they are using this 
design across the country. 
 
Mr. Fischer stated that the cost of the signs and the problem for customer finding the 
entrance to the building could be considered hardships. 
 
Mr. Kessler informed Mr. Fischer that a hardship cannot be monetary.   
 
Mr. Robert Salenik the architect for Saturn stated that the building was designed in 1990 
and signage usually averages 7 to 10 years.  The hardship is that this facility is out 
dated and these signs would be in line with what is happening across the country.  As 
the buildings age, cosmetic improvements are required. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if these were replacement signs. 
 
Mr. Novak stated they were just new signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the “sky box” is a new sign and part of the problem is that the 
drawings indicate that the sign will extend out 4 ½’ from the building, and will extend 3’-
1” above the roof line of the building.  This sign would be 90.25 square feet.  The sign, 
“Saturn of Troy” is a new sign; and the “Service Center” sign is a replacement sign.   
 
Mr. Fischer suggested that they could leave off the wording “A member of the Suburban 
Collection” from the Saturn of Troy Sign and also eliminate the word “Center” from the 
Service sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Saturn of Troy sign is 32 square feet.  Mr. Stimac asked if 
that sign could be reduced to 20 square feet.  If this was possible and the service sign 
taken down the only variance required would be the projection of the “sky box” sign from 
the building. 
 
Mr. Burke stated that he believed they could make this sign 20 square feet.  Mr. Burke 
then asked if this sign could be 15 square feet and one of the other signs 25 square feet 
to equal the 20 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that 20 square feet would be the maximum allowable square 
footage per sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the petitioner would have two signs that were each 20 square 
feet.  The projection of the “sky box” is 3 -1” above the parapet line, and 4’-6” from the 
building. 
 
Mr. Novak asked what the purpose of not having a sign project too far from a building 
was. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this rule applies to what are permitted as wall signs and has to do 
with how far the setbacks are for the building. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that there is a canopy that extends much farther than the sign would. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked about the Horizon logo proposed on the sign. 
 
Mr. Novak stated that the Horizon logo is part of the over all look of the sign design. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if that was part of the calculation used in figuring the size of the sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the entire gray box was used. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he was concerned about the part of the sign that extends out from 
the roof line. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the sign box extends 4 ½’ out from the building. 
 
Mr. Burke stated that the reason they want the line to project from the building is 
because it would not be visible to someone that is between 5’ and 5’-1” tall from the 
ground. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if the sign were mounted on the awning it would become part of 
the building as an architectural feature. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they could raise the arch to the top of the sign and that would 
eliminate the height of the sign. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if they made the sign out of the material used for the building it 
would become part of the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac suggested that they could re-design the wall to make it extend further out. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the reason was that the sign is not allowed to extend above the 
wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the intent of the Ordinance was to limit wall signs to be located on 
the walls of the building.  They would still have to comply with wind load requirements. 
 
Mr. Salenik stated that the Horizon with the logo is one of three or four changes that are 
being made to the building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Great Lakes Electric Sign Company, 1790 
Maplelawn, to install a primary wall sign 3’-1” above the parapet line of the roof and 4’-
6” out from the building wall, and to deny the request for additional square footage for 
the other wall signs. 
 

• Other signs can be reduced to 20 square feet in order to comply with the 
Ordinance. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APRROVE PRIMARY SIGN AND TO DENY ADDITIONAL SQUARE 
FOOTAGE FOR ADDITIONAL SIGNS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – KEVIN DETERS, METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 2915 COOLIDGE, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect four (4) wall signs, totaling 302.3 square feet, where a maximum of 
200 square feet is allowed by Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3). 
 
In addition, the petitioner is proposing that one of the wall signs will project 2’-3 ½” from 
the wall and a second sign projecting 19’ from the wall.  Chapter 85.01.05 (C) does not 
allow wall signs to project more than 12” from the wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is proposing to erect four (4) wall signs.  The 
site plan submitted proposes four (4) wall signs with an aggregate total of 302.3 square 
feet.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall sign for each building not to exceed 10% 
of the area of the front of the structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area. 
 
Additionally, the petitioner is proposing one of the wall signs to project 2’-3 ½” from the 
wall, and another sign projecting 19’ from the wall.  Chapter 85.01.05 (C) does not allow 
wall signs to project more than 12” from the wall. 
 
Mr. Paul Deters of Metro Detroit Signs, and Mr. David Miller and Mr. Don Waller of 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants were present. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that this is the first restaurant of this type in the country and is 
considered a prototype.  This is a new brand, with no previous recognition and they 
want clients to be able to locate this restaurant.  Existing landscaping does create some 
challenges for this building.  This is a free-standing building with three (3) visible sides.  
Mr. Miller also stated that they are not able to make use of the monument sign. 
 
Mr. Deters explained that the signs projecting 2’-3 ½” from the wall are actually on 
ledges, which is part of the architectural feature.  The owners wish to accent these signs 
with lighting behind the letters on the facades and if these signs were required to be 
flush with the wall, they would not be able to put these lights in. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that the petitioner is proposing to put one sign on Big Beaver and 
one on Coolidge and asked where the other two signs were going to be. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that the largest sign is along the curvature of the building.  It will be 
internally illuminated and will be very sophisticated.  One sign will be placed on the west 
side of the building and the other on the south side.  The sign on the west side of the 
building will be to show where to come into the parking lot from Big Beaver.  The sign  
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
on the south side of the building will show the entrance approaching from the south on 
Coolidge.  The front canopy is an architectural feature and is to look at the brand. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if a variance would still be required if the sign on the south side of 
the building were reduced to 20 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that because of the zoning on this building they are limited to one wall 
sign.  A variance is required for the number of signs they wish to erect and for the 
projection of the signs from the building. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how the sign on the curved face of the building is calculated. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it cannot be more than 10% of the face of the building, and the 
formula is width along the curve by the height of the letters. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the difference was between the sign that is 54 square feet 
and the sign that is 78 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the height of the letters for the sign on the south side of the building 
is 2’-6” in height, and the letters for the sign on the west side of the building is 3’-9”. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the signs could both be 54 square feet. 
 
Mr. Miller said that they could. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the hardship was to allow four (4) signs in lieu of one (1) sign. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he feels the location of the building creates a hardship. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked why they would not utilize the monument sign. 
 
Mr. Miller explained that the landlord wants his building to be on the primary ground sign 
and they do not believe they would get the visibility they want. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how many seats would be in this restaurant. 
 
Mr. Waller said that with the patio there are approximately 370 seats. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he does not think the signage is critical for this type of 
restaurant.  This building is a corner location and will be very visible.  There is a lot of 
new building that is being proposed for Troy and Mr. Kessler does not wish to set a 
precedent by allowing this many signs on a building.  Mr. Kessler also stated that he did 
not see a hardship that would allow a variance for this many signs and in his opinion 
this building has the best exposure and would have a good draw. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

7 
 

 
ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Miller disagreed with Mr. Kessler and stated that in his opinion signage is critical to 
the success of a restaurant.  He gave an example of a restaurant that they have in 
Livonia.  Their restaurant has a good deal of signage and is located next to a restaurant 
that does not have as many signs.  Their restaurant has been very successful, while the 
other restaurant is not doing as well.  In this marketplace they are very concerned that it 
is necessary that the building and signage both stand out.  This is the largest project 
their company has undertaken and they are trying to insure the success of this 
restaurant. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Rob Peters, Architectural Coordinator of Somerset Mall was present.  Mr. Peters 
objected to this request as he stated that they have opened six restaurants in this area 
and all of the signage for these restaurants complies with the Ordinance.  Mr. Peters 
believe that granting this variance will set a precedent and the restaurants that have 
complied with the requirements of the Ordinance would be at a disadvantage. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that these restaurants were covered under a different zoning district 
and therefore would have different requirements. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that part of this area is covered by a Consent Judgment and the south 
side of Big Beaver is zoned B-2 and does have different provisions.  A free standing 
restaurant would be permitted to have any number of signs up to 10% of the front area 
of the building.  If this site was in a B-zoned district they would be allowed to have four 
(4) signs but they could not be more than 200 square feet and they could not project 
from the wall. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the purpose of the sign was that indicates “fish, steaks, 
cocktails”.  
 
Mr. Miller stated that was the “branding” sign which lets people know what is available 
at the restaurant.  It denotes the offerings of the restaurant. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for clarification on the projection on the building. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that the signs will be on the ledges, which are architectural features of 
the building. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated the east elevation has an over-hang that circles around the front of 
the building and a sign on this overhang can’t be more than 12” from the wall.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the signs would present an obstacle to other restaurants in the area. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he did not believe they would offer an obstruction and also stated 
that McCormick and Schick have two (2) wall signs. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the projection of the sign would be an obstacle to McCormick & 
Schmick. 
 
Mr. Waller stated that their building is behind the tree line and he did not see how this 
would affect McCormick and Schmick at all. 
 
Mr. Peters stated that the signs on the existing restaurants do not advertise the “brand”. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that many people have come before this Board for relief of the 
Ordinance to put signs on all sides of a building.  The Board has to determine what the 
hardship is to allow a variance.  This corner is not unique.  There are a lot of elements 
which will make to a very successful business, not just signage.  Landscaping and 
lighting can achieve what the petitioner is looking for.  There is no hardship with this site 
that will allow more than what the Ordinance allows. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the words “fish, steak, cocktails” were incorporated into the main 
sign, if the sign would then comply. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the maximum size for this sign is 200 square feet. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if they could add 42 square feet of additional signage. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if the main sign was 200 square feet or less and less than 12” 
from the building wall, it would be allowed.   
 
Mr. Deters stated that because of the location of the building and the drives entering 
into this site, anyone driving north bound on Coolidge or east bound on Big Beaver 
would pass the site before they were able to turn in.  It will become a challenge for them 
to turn around and go back to the location. 
 
Mr. Peters stated that in his opinion this was a self-created hardship. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had explored the possibility of mounting “Ocean Club” on the 
wall of the building. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that they wished to add lighting behind the sign and this is why they 
wished to attached it to the canopy. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he understands that they wish to illuminate the sign.  Mr. Kessler 
also stated that he does not believe it would be a hardship for people to turn around and  
go back to this location as there are boulevards along Big Beaver which facilitate these 
turns.  Mr. Kessler said that there is a lot of exposure to people making the turns on the 
corner. 
 
Mr. Miller asked if they could have the number of signs they are requesting if they were 
reduced to meet the 200 square foot requirement.  The signs on the west and south 
sides of the building will allow people to find the entrances to this building.  If they 
reduce the height of the letters they would be able to comply with the 200 square foot 
requirement. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he was concerned about the number of signs and would like the 
petitioner to look at other options to reduce the number of signs. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked the petitioner if the signs could be put up within 12” of the wall and 
still be illuminated. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that they need the space behind the signs in order to clean the 
building. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this is strictly a design element in putting lighting behind the 
letters. 
 
Mr. Miller proposed the following to the Board:  the letters in the sign on the south side 
of the building would go from 30” high to 24” high; the letters in the sign on the west side 
of the building could go down to 2’; the large sign on the curvature of the building would 
go from a letter height of 44” to 36” and would be shortened in length. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he thinks four (4) signs are too many and asked if one sign could 
be eliminated. 
 
Mr. Deters stated that no matter where you are standing by this building, you will only 
be able to see one sign at any given time.  You will never see more than one sign.  This 
is due to the unique configuration of the building. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if the petitioner was planning to reduce the sign that reads “fish, 
steak, cocktails’? 
 
Mr. Miller stated that if the Board wished them to eliminate a sign this would be the sign 
that they would eliminate.   



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they could incorporate this sign into the larger sign. 
 
Mr. Miller said that if that sign was on a straight wall they could do that, but not on the 
curvature of the building. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had any similar signage at other locations.  Mr. Miller said that 
they have a similar sign in Columbus, OH and gave the Board pictures of this sign. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Kevin Deters, Metro Detroit Signs, 2915 Coolidge, relief of Chapter 85 
to erect three (3) wall signs, totaling 200 square feet in area and to allow one of those 
signs to project 2’-3 1/2” in front of the wall. 
 

• Hardship is that this building has three-sided exposure. 
• Sign that reads “fish, steak, cocktails” will be eliminated. 
• Total signage will meet the 200 square foot requirement. 
• Signs will not project beyond the ledge of the building. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4    - INTERPRETATION REQUESTED.  BRIAN J. TOGNETTI, 
REPRESENTING TRAVELER’S INSURANCE, 100 E. BIG BEAVER & 888 W. BIG 
BEAVER, for relief of the 2003 Michigan Building Code to repair damaged roofing on 
these buildings, rather than replace both roofs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the roofs of the two above referenced buildings were 
damaged by a wind storm in 2007.  The extent of the damage and the background 
conditions of the roofs is outlined in the report prepared by Christopher Campbell of the 
consulting firm NTH and dated October 25, 2007.  Based upon the extent of damage to 
the roof he, in a letter dated December 21, 2007, determined that the provisions of the 
Michigan Building Code required that the roof systems be removed down to the roof 
decking as part of the scope of work of this project.  The petitioner, representing the 
insurance carrier for these buildings, is asking for an interpretation that the scope of 
work on these buildings is a roof repair and therefore not subject to the requirements to 
remove the existing roofing systems.  The petitioner is citing Section 3403.3 of the 
Michigan Building Code as the basis for his appeal.  The Board has been provided with 
copies of the pertinent sections of the codes and a copy of the report from NTH 
Consultants dated October 25, 2007 that was referenced in the letter of December 21, 
2007. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he had worked for NTH Consultants in the past and knew Mr. 
Campbell and did not believe he would vote on this request. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for a history on this request. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the building owner has contacted him as to what was required 
for a roof repair of these buildings.  The Building Department has not inspected these 
roofs at this time and we do not typically issue permits for new roofs.  A decision was 
formed based on the information provided in the reports based on the requirements of 
the Building Code.  The Insurance Carrier for the building asked that a determination be 
undertaken as to whether these roofs could be repaired or if they needed to be 
replaced. 
 
Mr. James Jonas, of Redico Management Company and Mr. Chris Campbell of NTH 
Consultants, and Mr. Brian Tognetti, Project Manager of WJE were present.  Mr. 
Tognetti was representing the Travelers Insurance Company. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that he was hired as a consultant to look at this issue.  Mr. 
Campbell stated that he supports Mr. Stimac decision and agrees that these roofs need 
to be replaced.  Based on their observations of the damage on both roofs it is clear that 
the Building Code warranted removal of two (2) roofs.  There are two (2) layers of roof 
and the minimum requirement is that these layers be removed and a new roof put on 
the buildings.  The existing two (2) roofs are clearly covered in the 2003 Michigan 
Building Code.  If the roof is damaged by more than 50% you are required to remove 
the two layers and put on a new roof.  The roof deck that is in place may well have been 
compromised when the first roof failed and also when the second roof failed.  Mr. 
Campbell stated that the lowest building is approximately 175’ in height and the taller 
building is approximately 180’ in height.  At these heights, the wind is much stronger 
and this is what caused the damage to these buildings. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if they could observe the decking from the underside and Mr. 
Campbell indicated that they could but it has a spray applied fire proofing on it. 
 
Mr. Jonas said that these roofs are getting a much higher wind load than what is on the 
ground.  The wind is very strong on the top of the roofs.  These roofs were installed 
within a month of each other and they both were damaged at the same time.  Mr. Jonas 
stated that he was concerned because the roof was glued down to the underlayment.  
The wind separated the roof from the board underneath.  The existing deck is over 
twenty years old and they have found leaks in the interior offices. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that due to the magnitude of the damage observed, it is his opinion 
that this roof system has failed and the roofs need to be removed and replaced. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there is no dispute that the roofs were damaged and some form 
of action needs to be taken to bring these buildings up to the Building Code.  The issue 
before this Board is the scope of work that is required to bring these roofs into 
compliance:  A. taking the existing roof layers off and replacing with a new roof, or, B. 
taking part of the roof off and repairing the damaged areas. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that the Michigan Building Code would allow the owner to 
repair just the portion of the roof that is damaged, however, according to his 
interpretation of the Code he believes that you have to take the roofs down to the deck 
to fix the roofs.   
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that Chapter 34 of the Michigan Building Code states that the 
damaged portion could be removed and reconstructed to fix the roof.  When damage 
occurs, a building owner has the option to fix the roof.  Mr. Tognetti does not believe this 
is a re-roofing project.  Mr. Tognetti contacted a representative of the ICC and has 
gotten a letter indicating that they agree with his assessment that replacement of the 
roof is not required.  Part of the roof is water soaked and they would remove the 
damaged portion of the second roof and replace these damaged portions.  The building 
owner wants new roofs and there is no language regarding the cost of damaged roofs.  
The cost to repair these roofs is approximately $50,000.00, and replacement would be 
approximately $300,000.00.  Mr. Tognetti stated that the minimum requirement is that 
roof repairs be performed. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the life of a roof repair would be. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said he thought it was approximately 10 years. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this was an economical question. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that was correct and he would not want this to be precedent setting.  
Mr. Tognetti believes this interpretation of the Code is enlarged. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that Lutz Roofing Company gave the owners a proposal but that 
the owner did not feel the solution was adequate.  This is a structural situation and the 
roof system should have an average roof life of 18 – 20 years.  He noted that the letter 
from ICC would defer to the decision of the Building Official. 
 
Mr. Jonas stated that the original roof was installed under the Building Code and in his 
opinion the solution is to create a mechanically attached roof. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the letter from ICC indicates that there is a need to verify that the 
roof system assembly is 100% compliant when the job is completed.  The language of 
the Code states that you have to make sure when covering the roof that there is not a 
deficiency.  If you remove one of the layers the question remains as to how the decking  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
will be affected.  The second layer of material that is damaged could cause damage to 
the first layer of material.  The intent of the code is overall conformance of the roof.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he does not believe you can achieve the same installation when you 
already have two layers.  Mr. Kessler stated that it is his opinion that the entire roof 
needs to be removed and replaced. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that the roofing manufacturer will allow a single ply membrane to go 
over the first layer.  Mr. Tognetti stated that they are not proposing anything that is non-
conforming. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he believes the interpretation from ICC agrees with Mr. Stimac’s 
interpretation that the roof needs to be replaced.   
 
Mr. Stimac addressed question #3 in the letter from ICC and states that he believes it 
does agree with his interpretation as Article 34 does not have definitions for repair of the 
roof.  Article 1502.01 defines “roof repair” as the “reconstruction or renewal of any part 
of an existing roof for the purpose of its maintenance”.  The work that is proposed is not 
a repair but a roof replacement.  When you have two layers of roofing you have to take 
them off and go down to the deck, and when you have gone through two layers it is time 
to look at the deck to make sure it is code compliant.  A third roofing system requires 
that you remove the two layers and go down to the deck. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said that while repairing the second roof system you will be able to see any 
damaged portions beneath.  This is a repair.  Mr. Tognetti also said that he does not 
see how this Board would not allow a roof repair to continue.  This repair would not be 
contrary to what is allowed.  The integrity of the roof needs to be known.  As of their 
inspection they do not have any indication that the structural integrity has been 
compromised. 
 
Mr. Tognetti went on to say that they can remove and replace the damaged material but 
could not put up a third roof covering.  He does not think this is a technical issue, thinks 
that it is a fundamentally economic decision.  Mr. Tognetti stated that he would like this 
roof repair to be allowed. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this issue is being looked at as a Code requirement decision that 
the Board would render regardless of who would ask the question.  There are a lot of 
issues brought before this Board that the Board says “no” to.  The Board is not trying to 
help someone getting something that they are asking for and is not trying to help a Troy 
business owner with their insurance company. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this is a Code question and the answer from ICC would be the 
same no matter who was asking the questions. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that the building owner should have his choice of whether he wants 
to repair or replace the roof.  Mr. Dziurman said that he feels a roof replacement would 
be much better. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that repair is defined as using the same material on the roof to return 
it to its original condition.  A reconstruction also uses the same materials to bring it 
back.  Replacement is when you are removing the damaged portions of the roof,  
throwing the materials away, and bringing new materials in to fix the roof that would give 
you a weather tight roof.  Furthermore, the Code states that if you can take that material 
and use it to fix the damage; you are permitted to do it.  If you are going to replace the 
material, the Building Code can state what kind of materials are allowed.  When you 
have two existing layers on a building you have to remove these layers to put new 
roofing materials down. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that you have to remove two layers to put new materials down, but 
the re-hab Code has repair defined in full.  A roof repair can include removing and 
replacement of material on a roof.  You can’t use damaged materials to repair a roof. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how Mr. Tognetti would define a replacement. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that would be done when the roof was not damaged.  The roof 
would be considered old and they would put down new materials.  He believes this 
could be considered either a replacement or repair. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the local codes override the ICC. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the local jurisdictions enforce the Michigan Building Code and 
Michigan can modify the ICC code provisions but the language in the Michigan Code is 
identical to the ICC Code. 
 
Mr. Jonas stated that if it was not for the Re-hab Code they would not have been able to 
do anything with a lot of the buildings in Troy. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Re-hab Code was written to deal with existing buildings and 
how to bring them up to Code compliance with minimum regulations of health, safety 
and welfare different than that for a new building.  It is the option of the owner on which 
code to use.  If there is damage more than 50%, it would not be a good idea to use the 
Re-hab Code.  If something is damaged more than 50%, it is Mr. Stimac’s opinion that 
you have to take everything off.  All of the roofing would need to be removed down to 
the deck and take a good look at conditions of the deck connections and repair 
whatever was required. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if roofing material had any type of rating on it. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

15 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is a requirement for the Class of the roofing material, but he 
had not looked into it. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they often use the Re-hab Code and they are proposing to look 
at the structural integrity of the building.  If portions of the roof system were found to be 
compromised, structural repairs would be made and would be brought up to Code. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how they planned to fix this roof if they did not go down to the roof 
deck. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they would provide a set of drawings indicating the scope of 
work.  They would do test cuts on all areas.  City Center building has an upper and 
lower roof.  Mr. Tognetti also stated that they had used an infra-red analysis of the roof 
and it was determined that only 40% was compromised by moisture. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he had some concerns about the deck since 40 or 50 cuts 
would be made. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they can statistically analyze how many cuts would be 
necessary to get a 95% degree of certainty of the conditions. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was concern about the metal decking. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that the Board is here for an interpretation of a decision that was made.  
Going back to Section 1510.3, this discussion is about recovering or replacement of the 
roof.  There is a large amount of wet areas, and multiple layers could have water 
damage. 
 
Mr. Tognetti stated that they are not adding a new roof covering, but are doing a roof 
repair.  The owner has the right to choose what he wants to do. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that it is very clear that the intent of 1510.3 applies to this situation. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said that it is not one versus the other but this project can be done using 
this language or by using the language out of Section 34.  These roofs can be repaired 
without violating the Code. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that when you look at Section 34 it is not inclusive of every 
requirement, but gives you a look at the scope section of the Code. 
 
Mr. Tognetti said that when these materials are replaced they will comply with Section 
34. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 6, 2008 

16 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the roof replacement provisions of Section 1510.3 would apply 
and both layers must be removed before a new roof covering could be installed. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if it would be different if only one roof layer existed. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the definition of a roof replacement is to remove the existing roof 
covering and put on a new roof covering.  The extent of the damage to these roofs is 
much more than what would be considered a repair under regular maintenance. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what would constitute the repair of a roof membrane. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated if you dropped a screwdriver through a membrane and were able to 
use a small patch to repair the damage, this would be considered a repair. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to uphold the interpretation of Mr. Stimac regarding Brian J. Tognetti, 
representing Traveler’s Insurance, 100 E. Big Beaver and 888 W. Big Beaver, request 
to repair rather than replace two (2) damaged roofs. 
 

• Scope of work involved is a roof replacement vs. a repair. 
• Article 34 requires compliance with the provisions listed in Section 1510.3. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO AGREE WITH MR. STIMAC’S INTERPRETATION CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 11:32 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
    
    
   



 

 
February 21, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2007 Year End Calls for Police Service Report 
 

Background: 
 
 Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing current year 

calls for service with calls for police service from the previous year. In addition, at years end 
the department provides a 10-year history of criminal occurrences.    

 The report’s format complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS).  
All offenses within an incident are reported.   

 Group A Crime decreased 5.2% (194 incidents) from the 2006 level.  Within the group, the 
following categories show notable variations: 
 Breaking and Entering: Down 11.5% (36 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Down 13.5% (59 incidents) 
 Robbery: Down 23.1% (6 incidents) 
 Assault Offenses:  Down 4.4% (28 incidents) 
 Larceny/Theft Offenses:  Down 5.5% (85 incidents) 
 Forcible Sex Offenses:  Up 20% (5 incidents) 
 Drug/Narcotics Offenses: Up 8.1% (16 incidents)  
 Fraud Offenses: Up 15.3% (27 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Up 16.1% (23 incidents) 

 Group B Crime decreased 13.9% (245 incidents).  Significant variations from the 2006 
occurred in the following:  
 Drunkenness: Decreased by 80% (4 incidents) 
 Disorderly Conduct:  Decreased by 23.2% (58 incidents) 
 Drunk Driving: Increased 28.7% (105 incidents) 
 Liquor Law Violations:  Increased 13.5% (12 incidents) 
 Bad Checks:  Increased 43.3% (13 incidents) 

 Total incidents of crime (Group A & B combined) decreased by 8% (439 incidents).   
 Clearance rates, the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 

positively identified but not prosecuted, continue to be high: 
 30.3% of reported Group A Crime  
 80.1% of reported Group B Crime 
 46.8% of all reported crime has been cleared   

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



 2 

 Total Arrests decreased 10.6% (378 arrests)  
 Group A Crime Arrests:  Decreased 14.6% (210 arrests) 
 Group B Crime Arrests:  Increased 9% (109 arrests)  
 Group C Arrests (all other arrests):  Decreased 30.7% (277 arrests)   

 Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service increased by 5.7% (1909 incidents).  Notable 
variations within Group C include the following: 
 Alarms:  Down 6.6% (254 alarms)   
 Property Damage crashes increased 8.4% (210 crashes) 
 Injury crashes increased 11.6% (64 crashes) 
 Fatal crashes increased from 4 in 2006, to 5 in 2007 
 Reported crashes occurring on Private Property decreased 1.9% (20 crashes) 

 Total crimes and non-criminal calls for police service increased 4% (1542 crimes/calls for 
police service): 
 87.6% of all 2007calls for police service were non-criminal in nature 
 Traffic crashes comprises 10.7% of the 2007 calls for service total 
 Response to alarms made up 8.9% of the 2007 call total 
 Larceny/Theft is the most frequently occurring crime in the City of Troy constituting 3.6% 

of the calls for service total.    
 Total traffic citations issued increased 2.9% (389 citations):  
 Hazardous traffic citations issued increased 9.7% (862 citations) 
 Non-hazardous citations increased 8.8% (55 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations decreased 18.5% (549 citations)     
 Parking citations increased 2.7% (21 citations) 

 The Ten Year Calls for Police Service report is formatted in the UCR format.  While no 
longer used for State or Federal reporting purposes, the UCR format places crimes 
commonly considered “serious” or “non-serious” into Part I and Part II groupings making for 
an easier comparison.   

 Utilizing the UCR format, serious crime (Part I) is at its lowest level of the last ten years 
 Larceny/Theft offenses are at their lowest rate of occurrence in the last ten years and 

have decreased 38.2% (896 incidents) from the 1998 level 
 Other categories, while showing small annual increases and decreases over the ten year 

period, have remained relatively the same 
 Utilizing the UCR format Part II Crime occurrences (non-serious crime) is also at a 10 year 

low 
 Vandalism has fallen 51% (392 reported incidents) since 1998 
 Disorderly Conduct is down 86% (101 incidents) from the 1998 occurrence level  

 Homicide, sex offenses, and robbery (as well the attempt to commit one of these crimes) 
constitute what is commonly referred to as “crimes against persons”. Of these “crimes 
against persons”, sex offenses are the most frequently occurring.  Thirty such crimes, 
categorized as Forcible Sex Offenses by NIBRS were reported in 2007.  Forcible Sex 
Offenses include sexual penetration and touching, as opposed to UCR crime of Rape that 
only counted forced or coerced penetration (explaining the difference between the 30 
Forcible Sex Offenses in the NIBRS report and 10 rapes detailed in the UCR formatted 10 
Year Report).   

 An analysis of the 30 Forcible Sex Offenses occurring in 2007, indicates the following:   
 8 of the crimes (26.7%) were perpetrated by a family member 
 16 of the crimes (53.3%) were committed by friend, acquaintance, or person otherwise 

known to the victim 
 4 Sex Offenses (13.3%) were committed by co-workers 
 2 of the crimes (6.7%) were perpetrated by strangers 



 3 

 28 of the 30 reported Forced Sex Offenses (93.3%) were committed by people known to 
the victim; based on the nature of the relationship, the offenses occurred in the privacy of 
a home or workplace 

 Of the 30 crimes, 13 involved penetration and 17 involved touching  
 These crimes are difficult, if not impossible, to prevent through traditional law 

enforcement methods 
 Continued support of prevention programs and partnerships with Social Service 

agencies/schools/advocacy groups (CARE House, HAVEN, etc) are the most viable 
approach to reducing such crimes 

 An analysis of Larceny/Thefts, which is the most frequently occurring Group A Crime, 
indicates the following: 
 Retail Fraud (commonly referred to as shoplifting) comprises 38.9% (565) of the 1451 

total Larceny/Theft offenses 
 Larceny In/From A Building (thefts from offices or other non-retail establishments) make 

up 19.2% (279) of the Larceny/Theft Offenses 
 Theft of property from motor vehicles constitutes 17.2% (250) of the Larceny/Theft 

Offenses  
 A review of the 277 reported incidents of Breaking & Entering revealed the following: 
 65.3% (181) of the total Breaking & Entering incidents occurred at residences; 16 of 

those incidents were attempted crimes where access to the residence was not gained 
 37% (67) of the residential Breaking & Entering reports indicated that entry to the 

residence was gained without the use of any force; access was gained through an 
unlocked door, doorwall, or window   

 34.7% (96) of the reported Breaking & Entering incidents occurred at commercial 
establishments; 9 of those were attempted crimes  

 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 None 
 

Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 City of Troy Goal #1- Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 
 
 
 



Troy Police Department

Annual 2007/2006 Comparison - Incident Based Reporting
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Group A Crime Categories 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 Percent

Arson 4 7 -42.9% 4 7 -42.9% 1 0         + 0 0.0%

Assault Offenses 615 643 -4.4% 626 650 -3.7% 160 215 -25.6% 155 24.8%

Bribery 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Breaking and Entering 277 313 -11.5% 279 317 -12.0% 41 35 17.1% 33 11.8%

Counterfeiting/Forgery 37 71 -47.9% 38 72 -47.2% 8 14 -42.9% 7 18.4%

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 378 437 -13.5% 400 473 -15.4% 6 11 -45.5% 14 3.5%

Drug/Narcotic Offenses 214 198 8.1% 315 325 -3.1% 239 244 -2.0% 291 92.4%

Embezzlement 80 83 -3.6% 84 85 -1.2% 39 50 -22.0% 26 31.0%

Extortion/Blackmail 1 0         + 2 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Fraud Offenses 204 177 15.3% 212 201 5.5% 37 58 -36.2% 34 16.0%

Gambling Offenses 1 0         + 2 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Homicide Offenses 1 2 -50.0% 1 2 -50.0% 1 1        NC 1 100.0%

Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0        NC 0 2         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Larceny/Theft Offenses 1,451 1,536 -5.5% 1,494 1,567 -4.7% 643 743 -13.5% 508 34.0%

Motor Vehicle Theft 166 143 16.1% 170 155 9.7% 10 20 -50.0% 15 8.8%

Pornography/Obscene Material 0 2         - 0 2         - 0 1         - 0 0.0%

Prostitution Offenses 1 5 -80.0% 1 5 -80.0% 1 4 -75.0% 1 100.0%

Robbery 20 26 -23.1% 20 27 -25.9% 11 8 37.5% 5 25.0%

Sex Offenses, Forcible 33 25 32.0% 33 26 26.9% 4 7 -42.9% 5 15.2%

Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Stolen Property Offenses 13 18 -27.8% 22 21 4.8% 14 14        NC 17 77.3%

Weapon Law Violations 13 14 -7.1% 17 21 -19.0% 13 13        NC 15 88.2%

Group A Total 3,509 3,700 -5.2% 3,720 3,958 -6.0% 1,228 1,438 -14.6% 1,127 30.3%

Group B Crime Categories

Bad Checks 43 30 43.3% 47 30 56.7% 8 10 -20.0% 9 19.1%

Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 1 0         + 1 0         + 1 0         + 1 100.0%

Disorderly Conduct 192 250 -23.2% 209 274 -23.7% 28 12 133.3% 38 18.2%

Driving Under the Influence 471 366 28.7% 553 450 22.9% 492 396 24.2% 548 99.1%

Drunkenness 1 5 -80.0% 1 5 -80.0% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Family Offenses, Nonviolent 17 17        NC 19 19        NC 1 0         + 3 15.8%

Liquor Law Violations 101 89 13.5% 192 143 34.3% 195 200 -2.5% 183 95.3%

Peeping Tom 2 7 -71.4% 2 7 -71.4% 0 2         - 0 0.0%

Runaway (Under 18) 20 14 42.9% 20 14 42.9% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%

Trespass of Real Property 8 21 -61.9% 11 23 -52.2% 3 5 -40.0% 6 54.5%

All Other 662 964 -31.3% 780 1,046 -25.4% 592 586 1.0% 682 87.4%

Group B Total 1,518 1,763 -13.9% 1,835 2,011 -8.8% 1,320 1,211 9.0% 1,470 80.1%

Group A and B Total 5,027 5,463 -8.0% 5,555 5,969 -6.9% 2,548 2,649 -3.8% 2,597 46.8%

Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

AnnualAnnual Annual Annual



Troy Police Department
Annual 2007/2006 Comparison - Incident Based Reporting

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent

Description 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 Percent

Alarms 3,596 3,850 -6.6% 3,596 3,850 -6.6% NA NA NA NA NA

All Other 31,823 29,663 7.3% 32,335 30,129 7.3% 624 901 -30.7% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 35,419 33,513 5.7% 35,931 33,979 5.7% 624 901 -30.7% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 99 27 266.7% 99 27 266.7% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 40,545 39,003 4.0% 41,585 39,975 4.0% 3,172 3,550 -10.6% 2,597 46.8%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2007 Alcohol Involved Crashes

Personal Injury 615 551 11.6% 18 Incidents--2.9% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 2,704 2,494 8.4% 58 Incidents--2.1% involved alcohol.

Fatal 5 4 25.0% 1 Incidents--20.0% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 3,324 3,049 9.0% 77 Incidents--2.3% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 1,012 1,032 -1.9%

Crashes Grand Total 4,336 4,081 6.2%

Traffic Citations

Hazardous 9,765 8,903 9.7%

Non-hazardous 677 622 8.8%

License, Title, Registration 2,416 2,965 -18.5%

Parking 793 772 2.7%

Traffic Citations Total 13,651 13,262 2.9%

Annual Annual Annual Annual



Part I Crimes 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Criminal Homicide 1 2 1 0 1 2 0 2 0 1

Forcible Rape 11 10 7 9 12 12 7 12 7 11

Robbery 20 26 19 20 27 21 18 19 15 21

Aggravated Assault 42 50 39 32 49 45 45 49 50 65

Burglary 277 313 276 239 292 344 314 348 264 385

Larceny 1,451 1,537 1,572 1,564 1,563 1,507 1,712 1,819 1,915 2,347

Motor Vehicle Theft 166 145 127 112 158 120 201 132 157 164

Arson 4 7 3 3 5 10 19 6 3 4

Total Part I 1,972 2,090 2,044 1,979 2,107 2,061 2,316 2,387 2,411 2,998

Part II Offenses
Negligent Homicide 1 0 5 2 1 2 2 0 3 1

Non-Aggravated Assault 269 294 312 299 273 309 286 318 319 330

Forgery/Counterfeiting 37 71 115 113 109 99 69 51 58 41

Fraud 204 177 108 163 184 207 256 279 317 299

Embezzlement 80 85 80 91 82 100 115 113 105 113

Stolen Property 13 18 7 14 11 8 6 20 22 16

Vandalism 378 437 364 443 558 482 505 638 521 770

Weapons 13 14 12 14 10 12 23 19 22 24

Accosting and Soliciting 1 3 1 10 1 1 1 1 2 0

Sex Offenses 37 44 31 46 37 48 36 39 47 44

Narcotics 188 186 142 134 93 103 128 133 147 143

Gambling 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Family and Children 17 17 13 24 10 15 17 24 12 15

OUIL/OUIN 471 366 446 447 322 455 476 470 452 580

Liquor Laws 101 89 74 71 60 70 86 101 69 120

Disorderly 16 28 74 117 119 100 128 133 111 117

All Other Offenses 1,228 1,547 1,778 1,928 2,141 2,209 2,568 2,612 2,822 2,920

Total Part II 3,055 3,376 3,562 3,916 4,011 4,220 4,702 4,951 5,029 5,534

Total Part I & II 5,027 5,466 5,606 5,895 6,118 6,281 7,018 7,338 7,440 8,532

Total Part III 35,419 33,513 34,464 32,871 32,391 33,348 35,797 37,869 37,787 36,738

Total Part V Fire 99 27 64 58 77 69 140 158 144 149

Total Incidents 40,545 39,006 40,134 38,824 38,586 39,698 42,955 45,365 45,371 45,419

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 9,765 8,903 11,869 11,538 12,356 11,621 13,250 12,240 11,621 11,627

Non-Hazardous 3,093 3,587 5,378 5,072 3,829 5,027 4,161 5,017 5,797 6,091

Parking 793 772 1,195 798 886 1,120 1,717 1,479 1,686 2,163

Total Citations 13,651 13,262 18,442 17,408 17,071 17,768 19,128 18,736 19,104 19,881

Traffic Crashes
Property Damage 2,704 2,494 2,824 2,638 2,700 2,474 2,737 3,247 3,049 3,078

Personal Injury 615 551 656 716 722 753 882 940 930 1,008

Fatal 5 4 6 10 2 7 9 8 8 3

Total State Reportable 3,324 3,049 3,486 3,364 3,424 3,234 3,628 4,195 3,987 4,089

Private Property 1,012 1,032 1,130 1,133 1,137 1,317 1,345 1,440 1,479 1,491

Total Crashes 4,336 4,081 4,616 4,497 4,561 4,551 4,973 5,635 5,466 5,580

UCR ACTUAL INCIDENTS BY CRIME CLASS GROUP

TEN YEAR TREND



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b





























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-05



  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 26, 2008 
SUBJECT: Kocenda v. Troy et. al.  

 

 

 Plaintiff David Kocenda filed a lawsuit against the City of Troy, Troy Police Chief Charles 
Craft, Captain Edward Murphy, Captain Colleen Mott, Lieutenant Richard Hay, Lieutenant Charles 
Pappas, and Lieutenant Robert Rossman.  The lawsuit was filed in Oakland County Circuit Court 
and assigned to Judge Fred M. Mester. In his complaint, Kocenda alleged Defamation (Count I) and 
Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress (Count II).   

According to the complaint, the Plaintiff, who is a police officer for the City of Troy, was 
offered a job as a police officer for the City of Palm Beach Gardens, Florida (PBG).  Co-Defendant 
PBG Police Officer Ellen Lovejoy then initiated an extensive background investigation and fitness for 
employment evaluation.  The PBG job offer was subsequently retracted.  In his complaint, Plaintiff 
alleged that the individual Troy defendant officers provided false information to PBG Officer Lovejoy, 
which led to the retraction of the PBG job offer.  He claimed that remarks made by the Troy police 
officers to PBG Officer Lovejoy resulted in damage to his reputation, loss of income, emotional 
distress, humiliation, mortification, embarrassment, sleeplessness, anxiety and other damages.  

 We initiated an aggressive joint defense of the City and the individual Troy command officers, 
and filed a Motion for Summary Disposition as our first responsive pleading. We argued the 
defamation claim was barred by the applicable statute of limitation, and that both of Kocenda’s  
claims  were barred by governmental immunity.  We alternatively argued that his claims should be 
dismissed, since he failed to plead a viable claim against the City or the individual command officers.   
In response, Plaintiff argued the defamation claim was not barred by the one year statute of 
limitation, since he didn’t immediately know about the allegedly defamatory remarks, and he claimed 
that the date of the discovery was controlling, instead of the date that the statements were spoken.   
Plaintiff also alleged that individual defendant police officers acted with malicious intent and/or in a 
grossly negligent manner, and therefore they were not immune from liability.  Upon receiving our 
motion to dismiss the case, Plaintiff filed a motion asking the Court for permission to add a count of  
“Tortious Interference with An Advantageous Business Relationship” against the City and the 
individual officers.     

 On February 13, 2008, Judge Mester granted our Motion for Summary Disposition and 
dismissed the complaint.  The Court also denied Plaintiff’s Motion to Amend the Complaint.  
Although we had asked the Court for sanctions and attorney fees, based on the frivolous nature of 
the complaint, Judge Mester did not grant our request.  The Court’s orders dismissing the City, 
individual Troy command officers, and also PBG Officer Lovejoy are attached, and the case is now 
closed.  By filing the motion for dismissal so early, we were able to avoid the time and costs 
associated with the discovery phase of litigation, as well the time and costs associated with 
proceeding to trial.  Plaintiff has a right to file an appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals, but he 
must do so by March 5, 2008. 

Please let us know if you should have any questions. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06









 

 
 
TO:   Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE:  February 27, 2008 
SUBJECT: ITC’s Application for Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity    

 
 

International Transmission Company, d/b/a ITCTransmission, filed an  
application with the Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC), seeking a  
certificate of public convenience and necessity for the construction of a new  
transmission line, which was planned to run through Sterling Heights, Troy,  
Clawson, and Royal Oak.  Under the state statute (MCL 460.561 et. seq.),  
which was amended in 1995, this is only the second such request pending  
before the MPSC.  The only other request involves an overhead transmission  
project in Hartland Township, Michigan.  

 
ITC sought permission to construct this approximately 14 foot, 345 kilovolt  

line, which was projected to cost approximately $150 million dollars.  In addition  
to ITC and the Michigan Attorrney General (the parties of record), the City of Troy,  
Detroit Edison and Consumers Energy were granted permission to intervene in the 
proceedings.  According to Detroit Edison, the project, if approved, would increase  
annual transmission rates by $30 million.   

 
The MPSC denied ITC’s application on Februrary 22, 2008, finding that ITC 

needed to do a more comprehensive analysis of the proposed solutions for  
projected reliability problems, especially in light of the projected cost of the project.   
ITC may appeal the ruling within 30 days.  Our office will continue to monitor these 
proceedings.      

 
  As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.  
      

MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  

campbellld
Text Box
J-07









































 
 
 
 
 

Official Statement Relating to 
City of Troy  

General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2008 

is included with Council’s agenda packets 
and available for public viewing at the 

City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08


	AGENDA: March 3, 2008
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 Units/Lots Proposed, East Side of Evanswood Road, North of Square Lake Road, Section 1 – R-1D

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; Economic Development Corporation; and Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Ap...
	E-2 Planning Department Proposed Fee Increases
	E-3 Museum Education Programs and Facility Rentals Proposed Fee Increases
	E-4 Proposed Amendments to Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds Required
	E-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 20, 2008

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Asphalt Paving Material
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Turnout Gear
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (NIPA)

	F-5 Donation of Obsolete Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus
	F-6 Library HVAC Rooftop Replacement Units
	F-7 Approval of Subcontract No. 07-5734/S1 with Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. for Construction Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Project No. 02.201.5
	F-8 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland County
	F-9 Amber Creek East Apartments v. City of Troy

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 Council Member Broomfield Recommendation to Amend City Council Rules of Procedures Rule Number 15 – Appointments
	H-2 Council Member Eisenbacher Proposed Resolution for Responsible Support of the New Troy Library

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 4, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 9, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 15, 2008
	Downtown Development Authority/Draft – January 16, 2008
	Traffic Committee/Final – January 16, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 22, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 5, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 6, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Police Department – 2007 Year End Calls for Police Service Report
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – January 31, 2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to the Troy Police Department from Nancy Negohosian, Vice President HMS Products, Regarding Response Time and Quality of Officers
	Letter of Thanks to Sgt. Clark from Kathie Kryla
	Letter of Thanks to Captain Murphy from Tina Rowley Regarding Leadership Oakland

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy et. al.
	J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding International Transmission Company’s (ITC) Application for Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity
	J-8  Official Statement Relating to City of Troy General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2008

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



